Peter Baldacci, President
Penobscot County Commissioner

Thomas Coward, Vice President
Cumberland County Commissioner

Michael Cote, Secretary-Treasurer
York County Commissioner

Maine County CDmmissioneré Association

4 Gabriel Drive, Suite 2
Augusta, ME 04330
207-623-4697
www.mainecounties.org

Rosemary Kulow
Executive Director

Lauren Haven
Office Manager

IL.

IIL.

Iv.

VL.

VIL

MCCA Board of Directors’ Meeting Agenda
10:00 a.m., November9, 2016

Call to Order, Introductions, Attendance & Pledge of Allegiance

Approval of/Additions to the Agenda

Approval of October 12, 2016 Board of Directors’ Meeting Minutes

Old Business

A. Finalize Legislation to Propose for 2017 State Legislative Session

B. Consideration of Corrections Handout for Legislators

New Business

A. Presentation from NACo & Nationwide on Deferred Compensation Plans

B. Consideration of Charging a Registration Fee for County Commissioner Training

C. Consideration of Approving a Fee Funded by Contingency Account #6260-00 for
Attorneys to Provide Training to County Commissioners

D. Consideration of Venue for 2017 MCCA Annual Convention

Reports

A. Executive Director’s Report

B. Financial Report

C. Legislative Report

D. Professionalism in Management Committee Report

E. Association Reports

F. Corrections Report

G. Annual Convention Report

H. NACo Report

Other Business

VIII. Adjourn






Rosemary Kulow
Executive Director

Peter Baldacci, President
Penobscot County

Lauren Haven
Office Manager

Thomas Coward, Vice President
Cumberland County

Michael Cote, Secretary-Treasurer
York County

Maine County Commissioners Association

4 Gabiriel Drive, Suite 2
Augusta, ME 04330
207-623-4697
www.mainecounties.org

MAINE COUNTY COMMISSIONERS ASSOCIATION

MCCA Board of Directors’ Meeting Minutes Draft
10:00 a.m., October 12,2016

L. Call to Order, Introductions, Attendance and Pledge of Allegiance

President Peter Baldacci called the meeting to order at 10:13 a.m. The attendees recited the
Pledge of Allegiance and all present introduced themselves.

DIRECTORS PRESENT: Androscoggin — Comm. Beth Bell; Aroostook — Comm. Norman
Fournier; Cumberland — Comm. Thomas Coward; Franklin — Comm. Gary McGrane; Kennebec
— Admin. Bob Devlin proxy for Comm. George Jabar, Il; Knox — Comm. Roger Moody; Lincoln
— Comm. William Blodgett; Penobscot — Comm. Peter Baldacci; Piscataquis — Comm. Jim
Annis; Somerset — Comm. Newell Graf; Waldo — Comm. Amy Fowler; and York — Comm.
Michael Cote.

OTHERS PRESENT: Cumberland — Comm. Steve Gorden and Manager Peter Crichton; Knox —
Admin. Andrew Hart; Lincoln — Admin. Carrie Kipfer; Somerset — Admin. Dawn DiBlasi;
EMAD - Sean Goodwin; MACCAM - Bill Collins; and MACT — David Parkman.

DIRECTORS ABSENT: Hancock — Comm. Steven Joy; Kennebec — Comm. George Jabar 1,
Oxford — Comm. Steven Merrill; Sagadahoc — Comm. Charles Crosby I11; and Washington —
Comm. Chris Gardner.

STAFF PRESENT: Executive Director Rosemary Kulow, Risk Pool Manager Malcolm Ulmer,
and Office Manager Lauren Haven.

IL Approval of/Additions to the Agenda

Comm. Fournier moved and Comm. Fowler seconded approving the agenda no additional items
and the motion was approved unanimously.




III.  Approval of September 30, 2016 Board of Directors’ Meeting Minutes

Comm. McGrane moved and Comm. Moody seconded approving the minutes from the Board of

Directors’ meeting on September 30, 2016. The motion was passed unanimously.

IV. Old Business

A. Consideration of Potential Legislation

Comm. Gorden distributed a handout (attached) and requested the group use it to initiate the
conversation. The group explored a few of the topics. Comm. Bell suggested that Comm. Gorden
give a brief overview of each item. After that was accomplished President Baldacci asked
everyone to take five minutes to review the material and list their top five priorities. The results
were as follows:

Number

of Votes:  Legislative Issues:

9 mh 1L
9 m) 2.

8 m) 3.
4 m) 4

10 =) 5.
4 mp 6.

3 mp 7.

8 m) 8.

4 mp o

6 B 10.

9 mp 11.
12 m) 12.

Equitable Jail Sentencing Reimbursement: Regulate county jail sentencing
that extends beyond 6 months

Phlebotomy Assistance Regulation: A law to indemnify and require
medically certified individuals to perform evidenced-required blood draws
(Phlebotomy)

Probation Violation Housing: An individual that violates probation shall be
returned to the jail facility issuing the probation.

Latitude in the issuing of summons: Greater discretion for Sheriff
Departments’ to issue summons rather than arrest and temporarily
incarcerate.

Elimination of the Jail Tax Cap: Removal and transition of the Jail Tax Cap
limitation to the L D #1 Tax Cap

Update the fees for serving civil papers: Revise fees and requirements to
serve and file civil papers to actual average cost and be accomplished by the
Sheriff Departments.

Update the Average Daily Prisoner funding formula: Revise the Average
Daily Prisoners’ funding formula from incremental boarding fee to a
proportion of the county citizenry charge.

Funding to offset increased Sheriff Department’s costs due to
recreational marijuana use: Direct tax funding for the increase county
sheriff department’s expenses due to recreational marijuana usage.

Update DOC inmate county boarding fees: DOC inmate daily boarding fees
in County Jails shall be equal to the county’s inmate boarding charges to its
citizenry. Incremental holding is boarding an inmate less than 30 days per
year.

Increase 911 fees to support the increase cost to local dispatch centers:
Double the 911 fees with the increase to support the local 911 dispatch
operations and functions. With the majority of the State being served by
wireless, the answering burden has migrated to these centers.

Video Arraignments: The availability and use of video arraignments shall
be mandatory in all jurisdictions of the State of Maine.

Medicare and Medicaid for County Jail Inmates: The State of Maine shall
allow for the suspension of Medicaid or Medicare eligibility while persons
are incarcerated, rather than termination of those benefits. That way, when
the person is released from jail, their benefits may resume, thereby
eliminating one factor that may lead to higher rates of recidivism.

2



V.

VL

The group discussed taking the word, “reimbursement” out of number 1. Equitable Jail
Sentencing and combining that idea with number 9. Update DOC Inmate County Boarding Fees.
Administrator Bill Collins suggested each county determine what the current state funding pays
for in order to prove the need for additional funding.

Comm. Fournier said, “thank you” for the MMA Legislative Priorities. The group agreed that it
would be very helpful for county officials to attend MMA LPC meetings if permitted. Ms.
Kulow will continue to keep the group up to date on MMA LPC members and future meeting
dates.

Consideration of Office Manager’s Annual Salary

Executive Director Rosemary Kulow recommended raising the office manager’s salary to meet
the exempt salary requirement as defined in the Department of Labor’s overtime final rule
effective December 1st. The group reviewed the time tracking sheet included in the agenda
packet showing the office manager’s hours worked over a span of 17 weeks. Board members
debated the need for the position to exceed forty hours per week. The job tasks could be limited
to what could be performed in forty hours, some tasks could be outsourced or a stipend could be
paid for major projects like the convention. Comm. Coward said he would be in favor of keeping
the position exempt as it had been intended. He said that struggling with time tracking and
micromanaging tasks would damage the organization in the long run. He said the two people on
staff are the organization’s point of attack and should be appropriately resourced. Administrator
Scott Cole moved and Administrator Bob Devlin seconded raising the Office Manager’s annual
salary to the exempt standard salary level of $47,476. The motion passed with a vote of nine in
favor and three opposed.

New Business

Discussion of RFP for Legal Services

Executive Director Rosemary Kulow suggested enlisting the services of a lawyer to help draft
legislation, provide legal advice on other matters, and provide a legal review of legislation
MCCA plans to propose. The group discussed whether or not it is necessary to have a lawyer on
retainer. Administrator Scott Cole made a motion to table this agenda item until a later date
giving members time to study the REP. The motion was seconded by Comm. Cote and the motion

was approved.

LPC Conference Call with Colorado & Washington State Association Executive Directors
about Their States’ Experiences with Legalization of Marijuana.

Ms. Kulow announced the conference call was scheduled for Thursday, October 13 at 11:00 am
using the usual MCCA call in number and pin. An email with the details had been sent to LPC
member with an invitation to the meeting.

Reports

A. Executive Director’s & Financial Reports

Executive Director Rosemary Kulow presented her reports and invited questions. Comm.
McGrane moved and Comm. Fournier seconded approving the reports as presented. The motion
was unanimously approved.

3



B. Legislation Development Committee Report
This agenda item was discussed in 1V. A.
C. Professionalism in Management Committee (PMC) Report

Comm. Cote reported the committee is continuing to work on a one-day training course and a
handbook for newly elected officials. The committee is scheduled to meet after the MCCA
Board of Directors’ meeting to plan the details of a training in December.

D. Association Reports

EMAD: The association is working on the Homeland Security grant process. DHS/FEMA
awards Homeland Security Grant Funds annually to the States. Maine allocates grant dollars to
the sixteen Counties. The County EMA offices then convene a process with their towns to
determine the funding priorities for the year.

No report was given for the following associations:

MACCAM
MACT
MARP
MECCA
MRDA
MSA

E. Corrections Report

No report was given

F. Annual Convention Report

Office Manager Lauren Haven summarized the convention update included in the agenda packet.
The committee plans to meet in the next few weeks to begin working on the 2017 convention
scheduled for October 13, 14, and 15 at Point Lookout in Waldo County.

G. NACo Report

President Baldacci reported that Sallie Clark, NACo’s immediate past president and
Commissioner of El Paso County Colorado spoke at the convention. Sallie and her husband
attended many of the educational sessions and commented on the substantive content of the
trainings. Executive Director Matt Chase attended many of the convention activities as well.

VII. Other Business

No other business was brought before the Board of Directors.



VIII. Executive Session per M.R.S. Title 1 Ch. 13 Subchapter 1 §405.6.

Comm. Cote moved and Comm. Fournier seconded going into an executive session to discuss the
performance evaluation of the Executive Director. The motion was unanimously approved and
non-board members left the room.

IX. Return to Open Session for Any Action on Executive Session Issue(s)

The group reconvened at approximately 1:00 pm, at which point Comm. Baldacci was directed
to provide feedback to the Executive Director.

X. Adjournment

President Baldacci adjourned the meeting at approximately 1:05 p.m.

Respectfully submitted,

MCCA Office Manager, Lauren Haven

Attested:

MCCA Secretary-Treasurer, Michael Cote






IV. A.
IDEAS FOR LEGISLATION - 128th Maine State Legislature

MCCA Board Members: Please review the concepts below and decide on appropriate wording
to reflect the MCCA Board of Directors’ intent.

Equitable Jail Sentencing — (A) Any inmate incarcerated in a county jail longer than 9 months
shall either be moved to state prison for the remainder of their incarceration, or the county shall
be fairly compensated by the State for all time the inmate is incarcerated in county jail in excess
of 9 months. (B) Individuals who violate probation shall be returned to the corrections facility in
which they were initially incarcerated and when their probation was granted.

Phlebotomy Regulation — Individuals, who administer blood draws for the purpose of obtaining
evidence in suspected illegal substance use cases (phlebotomy), shall be medically certified.

Jail Tax Cap — The current 3% cap on property tax increases for county jails shall be
eliminated; and property tax raised for county jail budgets shall be regulated by the same LD 1
growth factor that applies to county budgets, with the provision that the limit may be overridden
by the requisite vote of the legislative body.

Revenue from the Legalization of Marijuana for Recreational Purposes — If the sale and use
of marijuana is declared legal in Maine for citizens 21 years and older, county government shall
be included in any revenue sharing formula developed and utilized as a result of marijuana sales.
County government will need additional revenue to pay for increased planning, policy
development, monitoring, and enforcement and must receive a “piece of the revenue pie” to help
defray costs that may accompany such a major change in public policy.

Video Arraignments — The availability and use of video arraignments shall be mandatory in all
jurisdictions of the State of Maine.

Medicare and Medicaid for County Jail Inmates — The State of Maine shall allow for the
suspension of Medicaid or Medicare eligibility while persons are incarcerated, rather than
termination of those benefits. That way, when the person is released from jail, their benefits may
resume, thereby eliminating one factor that may lead to higher rates of recidivism.




11/2/2016 Maine County Commissioners Association Mail - Re: Proposed Legislation

]
G M - I | Rosemary Kulow <rkulow@mainecounties.org>

Re: Proposed Legislation
1 message

Peter Baldacci <pkbaldacci@gmail.com> Mon, Oct 17, 2016 at 9:48 AM
To: Rosemary Kulow <rkulow@mainecounties.org>

Cc: "Michael J. Cote" <mjcote@yorkcountymaine.gov>, "Thomas S. Coward" <coward@cumberlandcounty.org>, William
Blodgett <wblodgett@roadrunner.com>

My only question is one item 1
inmates are not considered "state inmates" until they are sentenced.

Pre-trial detainees are ours until sentencing. Is it the intent of leg. that anyone sentenced to serve more than 9 months,
including the total of any consecutive sentences,be held in a state prison and not a jail to address the infrequent problem
of consecutive sentences that exceed 9 months to allow an inmate to stay in the county jail?

Peter B,

On Fri, Oct 14, 2016 at 11:34 AM, Rosemary Kulow <rkulow@mainecounties.org> wrote:
Dear MCCA Officers,

Please let me know if you think the attached accurately represents the legislation discussed and agreed to at the last
Board of Directors' meeting. Is this what you had in mind for presenting to potential legislative sponsors?

Thanks, and have a great weekend!

Rosemary Kulow

Executive Director

Maine County Commissioners Association
4 Gabriel Drive, Suite 2

Augusta, Maine 04330

Office: 207-623-4697

Cell: 207-653-5855

Fax: 207-512-2124

https:/imail google.com/mail/ca/w/0/?ui=28ik=cc8e89222a8view=pt&cat= Executive%20C ommittee&search=cat&th=157d2e6c5d3408ca&simI=157d2e6c5d340. .. 1/1



Peter Baldacci, President
Penobscot County

Thomas Coward, Vice President
Cumberland County

Michael Cote, Secretary-Treasurer
York County

IV.B.

Executive Director
Rosemary Kulow

Lauren Haven
Office Manager

Maine County Commissioners Association

4 Gabriel Drive, Suite 2
Augusta, ME 04330
207-623-4697
www.mainecounties.org

vV Vv V Vv V¥V

A\

Non-County Factors that Increase Jail Time & County Jail Costs

Overcrowding due to opioid epidemic arrests

Mental illness

Substance abuse/addiction

Medical conditions

Lack of communication and understanding among criminal justice system stakeholders

Delays in trial court and sentencing caused by:

prosecuting district attorneys

defendants/defense attorneys

scheduling by court clerks

types of sentences issued by judges

inability to pay bail

scheduling/conducting psychological evaluations

medical conditions

addiction/substance abuse treatment & counseling

inexperienced court-appointed attorneys who avoid unpleasant clients

Sending probation violators to county jail, rather than to the state facility where their underlying
sentence was imposed

Lack of discretionary authority on the part of county law enforcement personnel to issue
summonses, rather than arrest and put law violators in jail in some cases

Consecutive sentencing for more than one conviction and other judicial sentencing decisions

Natural cost increases of goods and services due to changing economics






Subscription Agreement
Page 1

NACo EMPLOYEE BENEFITS LLC
SUBSCRIPTION AGREEMENT

NACo Public Employee Benefits LLC
25 Massachusetts Avenue

Suite 500

Washington, D.C. 20001

Ladies and Gentlemen;

The undersigned (the “Subscriber”) hereby acknowledges having received and read the
Second Amended and Restated Limited Liability Company Agreement (as amended, the “LLC
Agreement”) of NACo Public Employee Benefits LLC, a limited liability company organized
under the laws of the State of Delaware (the “Company”). Capitalized terms used herein and not
otherwise defined shall have the respective meanings set forth in the LLC Agreement.

Subscription Commitment

The Subscriber hereby subscribes for membership interests (the “Interests”) in the
Company and agrees to contribute to the capital of the Company, in accordance with the
accompanying SUBSCRIBER QUESTIONNAIRE completed and signed by the Subscriber (the
“Subscriber Questionnaire™), the amount set forth in the Subscriber Questionnaire as the
Subscriber’s subscription to the Company, subject to adjustments pursuant to the LLC
Agreement. The Subscriber’s capital contribution shall be payable in full in immediately
available funds upon submission of the subscription documents. Payment must be made by
check payable to NACo Public Employee Benefits LLC at 25 Massachusetts Avenue, Suite 500,
Washington, D.C. 20001, or by wire transfer to .

The Subscriber understands that this subscription is not binding on the Company until
accepted by the Company, and may be rejected in whole or in part by the Company in its
absolute discretion. If so rejected in full, the Company shall return to the Subscriber, without
interest or deduction, any payment tendered by the Subscriber, and the Company and the
Subscriber shall have no further obligation to each other hereunder. Unless and until rejected by
the Company, this subscription shall be irrevocable by the Subscriber.

The Subscriber understands that the timing of the initial closing of the offering of
Interests in the Company will be determined by the Company in its sole discretion. The
Subscriber agrees that this subscription may be accepted in part by the Company, and if so, the

4851-4454-1227.v1



Company shall return the appropriate portion of any payment tendered by the Subscriber,
without interest or deduction.

Representations, Warranties and Covenants

To induce the Company to accept this subscription, the Subscriber hereby makes the
following representations, warranties and covenants to the Company and to the Members:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d

The information set forth in the accompanying Subscriber Questionnaire and
SUBSCRIBER CONTACT INFORMATION FORM (the “Subscriber Contact Information
Form”) is accurate and complete as of the date hereof, and the Subscriber will
promptly notify the Company of any change in such information. The Subscriber
consents to the disclosure of any such information, and any other information
furnished to the Company, to any governmental authority, self-regulatory
organization or, to the extent required by law, to any other person.

Except as disclosed in the accompanying Subscriber Questionnaire, the
Subscriber is acquiring the Interests for the Subscriber’s own account, does not
have any contract, undertaking or arrangement with any person or entity to sell,
transfer or grant a participation with respect to the Interests, and is not acquiring
the Interests with a view to or for sale in connection with any distribution of the
Interests.

The Subscriber or an advisor or consultant relied upon by the Subscriber in
reaching a decision to subscribe has such knowledge and experience in financial,
tax and business matters as to enable the Subscriber or such advisor or consultant
to evaluate the merits and risks of an investment in the Interests and to make an
informed investment decision with respect thereto.

The Subscriber understands that the Interests have not been and may never be
registered under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”), or
any state law and that the Company is not registered under the Investment
Company Act of 1940, as amended (the “Investment Company Act”). The
Subscriber agrees to notify the Company prior to any proposed sale, transfer,
distribution or other disposition of any Interests or any beneficial interest therein,
and, except as otherwise permitted under the LLC Agreement, will not sell,
transfer, distribute or otherwise dispose of any Interests without the consent of the
Board of Managers of the Company, which may be granted or withheld in the sole
discretion of the Board of Managers, and unless the Interests are registered or
such sale, transfer, distribution or other disposition is exempt from registration.
The Subscriber understands that the Company has no intention to register itself or
the Interests with the Securities and Exchange Commission or any state and is
under no obligation to assist the Subscriber in obtaining or complying with any
exemption from registration. The Company may require that a proposed
transferee meets appropriate financial suitability standards, complete and return a
subscription booklet, provide the Company with information and documentation
necessary for the Company to comply with applicable anti-money laundering
laws, and that the transferor furnish a legal opinion satisfactory to the Company

4851-4454-1227.v1



and its counsel that the proposed transfer complies with applicable federal, state
and any other applicable laws. An appropriate legend evidencing such restrictions
may be placed on any certificates issued representing the Interests and appropriate
stop transfer instructions may be placed with respect to the Interests.

(e) In formulating a decision to invest in the Company, the Subscriber has not relied
or acted on the basis of any representations or other information purported to be
given on behalf of the Company, except as set forth in the LLC Agreement (it
being understood that no person has been authorized by the Company to furnish
any such representations or other information).

® The Subscriber recognizes that there is not now any public market for the
Interests and that such a market is not expected to develop; accordingly, it may
not be possible for the Subscriber to liquidate readily the Subscriber’s investment
in the Company.

(2) [f the Subscriber is a corporation, partnership, trust or other entity, it is duly
organized, validly existing and in good standing under the laws of the jurisdiction
in which it is organized,; it is authorized and qualified to become a Member in,
and authorized to make its capital contributions to the Company and otherwise to
comply with its obligations under the LLC Agreement; the person signing this
Subscription Agreement on behalf of such entity has been duly authorized by such
entity to do so; and this Subscription Agreement has been duly executed and
delivered on behalf of the Subscriber and is the valid and binding agreement of
the Subscriber, enforceable against the Subscriber in accordance with its terms.
In addition, such Subscriber will, upon request of the Company, deliver any
documents, including an opinion of counsel, evidencing the existence of the
Subscriber, the legality of an investment in the Company and the authority of the
person executing this Subscription Agreement on behalf of the Subscriber which
may be requested by the Company.

(h) The Subscriber consents to the provision by NACo FS Corporation and its
affiliates of services or products to, and the receipt of compensation for those
services and products from, the Company as permitted under the terms and
conditions set forth in the LLC Agreement.

(1) The Subscriber has adequate means of providing for the Subscriber’s current
needs and contingencies and has no need now, and anticipates no need in the
foreseeable future, to sell the Interests for which the Subscriber hereby subscribes,
and the Subscriber currently has sufficient financial liquidity to afford a complete
loss of the Subscriber’s investment in the Interests.

() The Subscriber has had an opportunity to ask questions of and receive answers
from the Company or the Company’s authorized representatives concerning the
terms and conditions of this offering and other matters pertaining to the
Subscriber’s investment. In connection with its subscription for the Interests, the
Subscriber has consulted with its own independent legal, regulatory, tax, business,
investment, financial and accounting advisers to the extent it has deemed

4851-4454-1227.v1



necessary or advisable, and the Subscriber has made its decision to subscribe for
Interests based upon its own judgment and upon such advice from such advisers

as is has deemed necessary and not upon any view expressed by the Company or
any of its representatives.

k) The Subscriber acknowledges and accepts its obligations pursuant to the LLC
Agreement.

Indemnification

The Subscriber understands the meaning and legal consequences of the representations,
warranties, agreements, covenants and confirmations set out above and agrees that the
subscription made hereby may be accepted in reliance thereon. The Subscriber agrees to
indemnify, to the fullest extent permitted by law, and hold harmless the Company and the
Members from and against any and all loss, damage, liability or expense, including reasonable
costs and attorneys’ fees and disbursements and costs to investigate any claims, which the
Company or the Members may incur by reason of, or in connection with, (i) the Subscriber’s
breach of any representations or warranties or failure to fulfill any covenants or agreements
contained herein, in the Subscriber Questionnaire or in any other document(s) furnished by the
Subscriber pursuant to this Subscription Agreement and (ii) any regulatory or governmental
agency claim or investigation or inquiry relating to the Subscriber’ subscription for Interests
pursuant to this Subscription Agreement.

Miscellaneous

(a) The Subscriber agrees that, except as permitted by applicable law, it may not
cancel, terminate or revoke this Subscription Agreement or any agreement of the
Subscriber made hereunder, and that this Subscription Agreement shall be binding
upon the Subscriber’s successors and assigns.

(b) All of the representations, warranties, covenants, agreements and confirmations
set out above and in the Subscriber Questionnaire shall survive the acceptance of
the subscription made herein and the issuance of any Interests.

(c) This Subscription Agreement together with the Subscriber Questionnaire, the
Subscriber Contact Information Form and the LLC Agreement constitute the
entire agreement between the parties hereto with respect to the subject matter
hereof and may be amended only by a writing executed by both parties. This
Subscription Agreement may be executed in two or more counterparts, each of
which shall be deemed an original but all of which together shall constitute one
and the same instrument.

(d) Within ten (10) days after receipt of a written request therefor from the Company,
the Subscriber agrees to provide such information and to execute and deliver such
documents as the Company may deem reasonably necessary to comply with any
and all laws and ordinances to which the Company is or may be subject.

4851-4454-1227.v1



(e)

6]

(2)

(h)

The Subscriber agrees to provide the Company: (i) a valid and duly executed
Internal Revenue Service Form W-9, as appropriate, upon the Subscriber’s
admission as a Member to the Company and promptly upon a subsequent
reasonable request by the Company; (ii) a valid and duly executed Internal
Revenue Service Form W-9, thirty (30) days prior to the end of each third taxable
year thereafter that the Subscriber owns an Interest in the Company; and (iii)
prompt notice upon any change in the information provided on such form.

The Subscriber understands and acknowledges that the Company is, or may in the
future become subject to, anti-money laundering statutes, regulations and
conventions of the United States, and the Subscriber agrees to execute
instruments, provide information, or perform any other acts as may reasonably be
requested by the Company, or an authorized representative of the Company, for
the purpose of: (i) carrying out due diligence as may be required by applicable
law; (ii) maintaining records of identities, or verifications or certifications as to
identities; and (iii) taking any other actions as may be required to comply with
and remain in compliance with money laundering statutes, regulations or
conventions applicable to the Company.

The Subscriber authorizes and consents to the Company releasing confidential
information about the Subscriber and, if applicable, any underlying beneficial
owner(s), to the appropriate governmental or regulatory authorities if the
Company, in its sole discretion, determines that it is in the best interests of the
Company in light of applicable statutes, regulations and conventions.

The Subscriber acknowledges that upon acceptance of this Subscription
Agreement, the Company may provide a password and other information
necessary to access an Internet website maintained by the Company through
which information regarding the Company may be provided on a confidential
basis. The Subscriber agrees to refrain from sharing the password or other
information necessary to access the website with anyone other than authorized
personnel or agents of the Subscriber or investment managers, advisers,
consultants or similar professionals retained by the Subscriber and authorized to
access the website on the Subscriber’s behalf. The Subscriber will keep
confidential all information regarding the Company, its business and prospects, as
well as information regarding the other Members and will not disclose or use any
such information except as required to fulfill its obligations under the LLC
Agreement or to monitor its investment.

Limited Power of Attorney

Subject only to the acceptance of this Subscription Agreement by the Company, the

Subscriber hereby (i) joins in and agrees to be bound by the LLC Agreement as a Member; and
(i) irrevocably constitutes and appoints NACo FS Corporation, with full power of substitution,
its true and lawful attorney-in-fact and agent, in its name, place and stead to make, execute or
sign, acknowledge, swear to, verify, deliver, record, file and/or publish (in each case, in
accordance with the terms of this Subscription Agreement and the LLC Agreement) (x) the LLC
Agreement and any amendment or restatement thereto, the Company’s Certificate of Formation

4851-4454-1227.v1



and any amendment thereto and such other documents, instruments and certificates which may
from time to time be required by the laws of the United States of America, the laws of the state
of the Company’s formation, or any other jurisdiction in which the Company conducts or plans
to conduct its affairs, or any political subdivision or agency thereof, in order to qualify or
otherwise enable the Company to conduct its affairs in such jurisdictions or to effectuate,
implement and continue the valid existence and affairs of the Company, and (y) such instruments
and documents necessary to effect the transactions contemplated by the LLC Agreement. Such
attorney is not hereby granted any authority on behalf of the Subscriber, as a Member, to amend
the LLC Agreement except as set forth in the LLC Agreement and except that as attorney-in-fact
for a Member, NACo FS Corporation will have the authority to execute any duly adopted
amendment to the LLC Agreement. It is expressly intended by each Subscriber that the power of
attorney granted by this paragraph is coupled with an interest, shall be irrevocable, and shall
survive and not be affected by the subsequent bankruptcy, cancellation, dissolution or
termination of the Subscriber and shall extend to such Subscriber’s successors and assigns.

Notices

Any notice required or permitted to be given to the Subscriber in relation to the Company
shall be sent to the address, facsimile number or e-mail address specified as the Primary Contact
on the Subscriber Contact Information Form accompanying this Subscription Agreement or to
such other address, facsimile number or e-mail address as the Subscriber designates by written
notice received by the Company.

Governing Law

This Subscription Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of Delaware. Ifit is determined by a court of competent jurisdiction that any
provision of this Subscription Agreement is invalid under applicable law, such provision shall be
ineffective only in such jurisdiction and only to the extent of such prohibition or invalidity,
without invalidating the remainder of this Subscription Agreement. Any action or proceeding
against the parties relating in any way to this Subscription Agreement may be brought and
enforced in the courts of the District of Columbia, to the extent subject matter jurisdiction exists
therefor, and the parties irrevocably submit to the nonexclusive jurisdiction of each of those
courts in respect of any such action or proceeding.

[SIGNATURE PAGES FOLLOW]

4851-4454-1227.v1



Subscription Agreement
Signature Page

MEMBER SIGNATURE PAGE

Execution of this Signature Page evidences the Subscriber’s agreement to be bound by
this Subscription Agreement and by the LLC Agreement of NACo Public Employee Benefits
LLC, and constitutes a counterpart Signature Page to each of the foregoing.

The Subscriber confirms that the information contained in the Subscriber Questionnaire
and the Subscriber Contact Information Form is complete and accurate and will notify the
Company immediately of any material change occurring prior to the acceptance of its
subscription.

Name of Subscriber

’ Requested Commitment
Date
ENTITIES
Signature of Authorized Signatory Signature of Authorized Signatory
Name of Authorized Signatory Name of Authorized Signatory
Title of Authorized Signatory Title of Authorized Signatory

4851-4454-1227.v1



Subscription Agreement
Signature Page

COMPANY ACCEPTANCE PAGE
Execution of this Signature Page by the Company constitutes acceptance of the
above-named Subscriber’s Subscription Agreement, and admission of such Subscriber as a
member of NACo Public Employee Benefits LLC.

NACo Public Employee Benefits LLC

By

Name:

Its:

Accepted as of:

4851-4454-1227.v1



POINT
LOOKOUT

NORTHPORT, MAINE

Maine County Commissioners Assn - October 12-15, 2017

VD

Description Quantity Days/Nights Average t* PT;%_-?TX‘ 2°A Tax Total
Accommodations Room Nights \
One Bedroom Queen Studio Cabin 25 1 $149.00 S 3,725.00 | s 33\§.25 S 4,060.25
One Bedroom King Studio Cabin 10 i $149.00 S 1,490.00 | s 134\. 10| s 1,624.10
Two Bedroom Double, One Bath Cabin 27 1 $169.00 S 4,563.00 | s 410\67 S 4,973.67
Two Bedroom Queen, Two Bath Cabin 55 1 $179.00 S 9,845.00 | s 886.b5 s 10,731.05
Three Bedroom, Two Bath Cabin 8 1 $299.00 S 2,392.00s 21 5.*8 s 2,607.28
Lodging Total: Fri 75 Cabins/Sat 50 Cabins $22,015.00 \ $  23,996.35
Price may vary based on season, and discounts may be available based on occupancy.
Standard Cabin Amenities include: Linens, sheets, towels, microwave, coffee maker, mini fridge, wireless internet, DVD player.
While staying with us, guests arc encouraged to use the on site fitness center, bowling center and hiking trails.
Cost Food Total Gratuity/ Tax Catering
Svc Chg Total
Dining/Catering / Meals
Breakfast: 150 2 512,50 S 3,750.00 s 750.00|s 306.00|s 4,806.00
AM Refreshment Break: 150 2 §9.00 S 2,700.00 | § 540.00|s 230.32 | s 3,460.32
Lunch Buffet: 150 2 $24.00 S 7,20000 S 1,440.00 s 58752 | s 9,227.52
Reception/not including bar or bartenders 200 1 $10.00 S 2,00000|s 40000|s 163.20]s 2,563.20
Dinner Buffet: 200 1 $40.00 s 8,000.00 s 1,600.00 s 65p.80 s 10,252.80
Reception/not including bar or bartenders 150 1 $10.00 $ 1,500.00 |s 30000 |s 122401s 1,922.40
Dinner Buffet: 150 1 $35.00 S 5,250.00 [ s 1,050.00 | s 42840 |s 6,728.40
Bar Options and Hors d'Ocuvres available upon request S -
Dining Subtotal | 530,400.00 |/, D80  AE5LL [s 38960.64

** Dining Costs are estimated, final menu choices are due 30 days prior to event, price will vary depending on final meal option chosen.
** A service charge of 18% of the total food & beverage revenue will be added, which will be provided to wait stafl employees, service employees and/or service ba
2% of total food & beverage revenue & applicable taxes will be added. This admin fee is retained by the resort and is not a tip, gratuity or scrvice charge for any employee and is not the
property of the employees providing service to you. An 8% State sales tax will also apply to all food & beverage charges. A 5.5% state tax will apply to AV.

CRoHEol

-

nference F
Hedges Hall & Pavilion 1 2 $5,500.00 $ 11,000.00 n/a $  2,500.00
Bowling Center 1 1 $400.00 $  400.00 n/a $ 400.00
Vendor Tables $25 ea S - S S $ -
Audio-Visual Charges (tbd) ] - S - $ -
s R ) R /g/——\_—" [~
Conference Subtotal NS 2,900.00 f ~
Shuttle Service per vehicle per hour $100.00 S - n/a S -
Transportation Subtotal S ¥
SUBTOTAL S 41,860.64
Estimated Conference & Food $ 41,860.64

#21 280

e



POINT
LOOKOUT

NORTHPORT. MAINE

September 14, 2016

Ms. Lauren Haven, Office Manager

Maine County Commissioners Association
4 Gabriel Drive, Suite 2

Augusta, ME 04330

RE: Maine County Commissioners 2017 Conference
10/12/2017 - 10/15/2017
Dear Lauren:

We appreciate your interest in Point Lookout and are holding the above dates you requested on a
tentative basis subject to receiving the enclosed Group Contract and advance deposit.

The Group Contract outlines your requirements, as we currently understand them. Please review
the contract carefully, and if all appears correct, initial each page, then sign and date the last page
and return a copy with the advance deposit of $3,500.00 and completed credit card authorization
form. Upon receipt of the contract, it will be countersigned and returned to you for your files.
You may note any corrections or changes, and we will correct our records; if questions arise, we
will contact you to discuss the notations.

Thank you for selecting Point Lookout for your conference. We look forward to working with
you and welcoming your attendees.

Sincerely,
Catherine

Catherine Smith
Director of Sales

67 ATLANTIC HIGHWAY, NORTHPORT, ME 04849 e PHONE: 207-789-2000 FaAX: 207-789-5968



POINT
LOOKOUT

NORTHPORT, MAINE

GROUP CONTRACT
Date Created: October 14, 2016
Sales Contact: Catherine Smith, DOS
File # G/0015
GROUP INFORMATION
Organization: Maine County Commissioners Association (MCCA)
Contact: Lauren Haven, Office Manager
Address: 4 Gabriel Drive
Augusta, ME 04330
Phone Number: (207) 623-4697
Email Address: lauren.haven@mainecounties.org

DATES REQUESTED

Arrival/Check-In: Thursday 10/12/2017
Departure/Check-Out: Sunday 10/15/2017

ROOM INFORMATION

Cribs and Cots are available at Point Lookout for a $20 per day fee. Point Lookout does not
guarantee specific room type availability. Requests will be accommodated based on availability.

RATE INFORMATION

All rooms are per night, and do not include Maine State Lodging Tax. Once this contract is
accepted, we will remove from our inventory and consider sold to you for your use room nights
pursuant to the following arrival and departure pattern:

Day Date Rm Type Rooms Rate Total
Thursday | 10/12/2017 1 Bedroom King 2 $149.00 15 Cabins
1 Bedroom Queen 4 $149.00
2 Bedroom 1 Bath 2 $169.00
2 Bedroom 2 Bath 5 $179.00
3 Bedroom 2 Bath 2 $299.00
Friday 10/13/2017 1 Bedroom King 5 $149.00 75 Cabins
1 Bedroom Queen 15 $149.00
2 Bedroom 1 Bath 15 $169.00

Initials:



2 Bedroom 2 Bath 35 $179.00
3 Bedroom 2 Bath 5 $299.00
Saturday | 10/14/2017 1 Bedroom King 5 $149.00 50 Cabins
1 Bedroom Queen 10 $149.00
2 Bedroom 1 Bath 12 $169.00
2 Bedroom 2 Bath 20 $179.00
3 Bedroom 2 Bath 3 $299.00
Total Room Night 140 $24,740.00

METHOD OF RESERVATION

From the moment this contract is accepted, we will be holding your contracted guest room block
for the use of your attendees.

Individual Call-In: Should your attendees be making their own reservations directly with our
Reservations Department, they need to call 1-800-515-3611 or 207-789-2000. Please advise your
attendees to refer to Maine County Commissioners when making their reservation to qualify for
the special group rate.

Rates cannot be changed upon check-in or check-out for guests who fail to identify their
affiliation at the time the reservation is requested. After the cut-off date, reservations will be
accepted on a space available, and rate available basis.

Individual Call-In: In order to confirm reservations a credit card is required for guarantee.

RESERVATIONS DUE DATE

All unreserved portions of the guestroom block will be released on Thursday, 09/14/2017, thirty
days prior to the groups arrival date, all room nights which have not been reserved as described
above will be deemed to be room nights which your group will not use, and they will become
subject to the attrition provisions herein. Such room nights will at that date be returned to the
hotel's general inventory. Reservation requests from your attendees received less than thirty days
prior to your arrival date will be accepted on a space available basis, at the higher of the contract
rate or rate available at that time. Should such requests be accepted, such room nights will be
credited to your block for purposes of any calculation of attrition.

CHECK-IN AND CHECK-OUT TIMES

Our check-in time is 4:00 p.m.; check-out time is 10:00 a.m. All guests arriving before 4:00 p.m.
will be accommodated as rooms become available. Our front desk can arrange to check luggage
for those arriving early when guestrooms are unavailable, and for guests attending functions on
departure day.

Should a guest require a late check-out, they are required to contact the Front Desk for
availability; applicable charges will apply.

GUEST ROOM CHARGES
It is our understanding that your guests will pay their own account upon departure. When

Initials



reservations are made, we will require a deposit equal to the room rate and tax for the first night
for each reservation. An individual’s deposit is refundable to that individual if Point Lookout
Resort & Conference Center receives notice of an individual’s cancellation at least 48 hours prior
to scheduled arrival, though this shall have no bearing upon the groups total liability pursuant to
either the attrition or cancellation clauses herein. Upon check-in, each guest will be required to
present a valid credit card upon check-in, on which an amount of sufficient pre-authorization can
be obtained to cover the room and tax charges for the length of the guest’s stay, plus the
anticipated use of the hotel’s ancillary services. Should any guest not settle his or her account in
full upon departure, the group will be responsible for those charges.

GUEST RoOM BLOCK ATTRITION

We require at least 85% utilization of your total blocked room nights. If room nights fall below
the required utilization (allowing for an attrition rate of 15%), Maine County Commissioners
Annual Meeting will be responsible for rooms unsold from the original block, less allowed
attrition. Attrition will be calculated by multiplying the number of remaining sleeping room
nights, times the group rate, excluding taxes.

At the reservations due date, as established above, we will calculate the amount of room attrition
which we anticipate will be due. We will advise you of that amount shortly thereafter, and that
amount will be due immediately upon receipt of our invoice. Upon receipt of your payment, that
amount will be credited to your master account and will be applied to the final calculation of
rooms and food and beverage attrition upon the conclusion of your meeting.

FUNCTION FACILITIES REQUIREMENTS AND FEES

Point Lookout Resort & Conference Center will provide all of the function space you require in
accordance with the schedule of events which is described below for a fee of $2,900.00, in
recognition of the revenue we will derive from the provision of room nights and food and
beverage services and ancillary services hereunder. Please ensure that the schedule below
includes all space necessary to accommodate set-up and break-down times, all audio-visual
needs, head tables and displays.

Six months prior to your event, we require a final estimated program of events in order to
finalize your specific daily requirements. Three months prior to your event, we require a final
program of events in order to finalize specific daily requirements. Should we not receive these
documents at six and three months prior to your event, we reserve the right to use your program
from your last meeting, so long as it does not exceed the parameters of the schedule of events
below. Nothing in these documents will be construed to waive or alter the rooms and food and
beverage revenue requirements set forth in this contract. Should you desire additional food and
beverage services and/or meeting space beyond that specified in the schedule of events below,
please advise us as soon as possible so that we may attempt to secure such additional space for
your use. Point Lookout Resort & Conference Center reserves the right to make reasonable
substitutions in meeting and banquet rooms and/or menu selections. Diagrams and identification
of the hotel’s meeting space to be used for your meeting may not be disseminated by the group
without the hotel’s prior approval.

Initials



From To Function Name | Function Room | Covers
Thu 10/12/2017 | Thu 10/12/2017 | Vendors Set Up Penobscot
08:00AM 01:00PM Day Pavilion
Fri 10/13/2017 | Fri 10/13/2017 Workshops Hedges Hall & 150
08:00AM 2:00PM Breakfast/Break Pavilion
/Lunch
Fri 10/13/2017 | Fri 10/13/2017 Reception/ Hedges Hall & 200
06:00PM 09:00PM Dinner Pavilion
Sat 10/14/2017 | Sat 10/14/2017 Workshops Hedges Hall & 150
08:00AM 02:00PM Breakfast/Break Pavilion
/Lunch
Sat 10/14/2017 | Sat 10/14/2017 Bowling Bowling Center 100
02:00PM 04:00PM
Sat 10/14/2017 | Sat 10/14/2017 Reception/ Hedges Hall & 150
06:00PM 09:00PM Dinner Pavilion
Sun 10/15/2017 | Sun 10/15/2017 Breakfast Hedges Hall 100
7:00 AM 10:00 AM

* Vendor Tables $25 per, including power

All planned functions of the group should be arranged at the time of the execution of the
contract. Meeting room set-up requirements must be advised at the time of booking due to
limited capacities. Additional function space requests will be accommodated on a space available
basis and at a cost to be negotiated upon notification of need. Function rooms are assigned based
upon the minimum number of people anticipated. We reserve the right to reassign space based on
actual attendance.

RooM BLOCK AND SERVICE COMMITMENT

When you contract for a block of rooms and meeting facilities and for food and beverage
services, those room nights, facilities and services are removed from our inventory and
considered sold to you, and Point Lookout Resort & Conference Center makes financial plans
based upon the revenues it expects to achieve from your full performance of the contract. It is
impossible for Point Lookout Resort & Conference Center to know in advance whether or under
what circumstances or at what rates it would be able to resell your contracted room nights,
services or facilities if you do not use them, either as the result of a cancellation of your meeting
or as the result of less than contracted room block usage or less than contracted usage of food
and beverage functions ("attrition"). In most instances, when groups do not use their contracted
room nights or services, Point Lookout Resort & Conference Center is unable to resell those
room nights or services and even when room nights or services are resold, they are generally not
resold at the same rates, may be resold to groups which would have utilized Point Lookout
Resort & Conference Center at another time, are not resold to groups that have the same needs as
the original group, etc. Even when rooms or services may be resold, it is costly to re-market the
rooms and facilities, and such efforts divert the attention of our sales staff from selling the
hotel’s rooms and facilities at other times. While your room block has been held out of our
inventory, we may have turned away more lucrative groups in order to meet our commitment to
you.

Initials



For all these reasons and others, we agree that in the event of cancellation or attrition, the
following charges, which represent a reasonable effort on behalf of Point Lookout Resort &
Conference Center to establish its loss prospectively, shall be due as liquidated damages.
Because Point Lookout Resort & Conference Center reasonably expects to derive revenue from
your meeting above and beyond that revenue derived from the provision of room nights and food
and beverage services, and because it is difficult to estimate the actual revenue which may be
derived from your meeting, the amounts due as and for liquidated damages are intended to
compensate Point Lookout Resort & Conference Center for all of its losses associated with
cancellation and/or attrition.

ANTICIPATED ROOM NIGHT/BANQUET FOOD & BEVERAGE REVENUE:

At this time, Point Lookout Resort & Conference Center is holding 140 room nights for your use
over the contracted dates, totaling revenues of $24,740.00. Planned banquet food and beverage
revenue is $30,400.00 All revenue figures are net and not inclusive of taxes, service charge or
commissions.

MEETING ROOM SET-Up FEE

Specific details as to registration, rooming of persons attending, accounting, Master Account
charges, credit approval, promotional publicity, and other matters will be worked out to the
satisfaction of both parties sixty (60) days prior to the contracted event. Any physical alterations
to function rooms, i.e., tacks in walls or doors, tape, nails, etc., must be cleared with the
Conference Service Coordinator before use. Any damage will be the responsibility of the group
along with any changes that are incurred.

Maine County Commissioners will be responsible for reimbursing Point Lookout and other
persons, employees, agents, including outside contractors, for any damages caused by members
of its group or by any of its employees, agents, contractors, or subcontractors. Each member of
the group will be required to furnish a major credit card and a signed registration card upon
check-in. Maine County Commissioners will be responsible for any damage to the extent Point
Lookout is unable to collect payment from members of Maine County Commissioners. Point
Lookout reserves the right to terminate any group member’s lodging in the event of damage to
rooms or facilities.

Point Lookout reserves the right to inspect and control all private functions. Should excessive
noise occur, or should there be complaints or a disturbance after 10 p.m. or before 7 a.m., Point
Lookout Resort & Conference Center reserves the right to take appropriate action necessary to
control the event.

Maine County Commissioners hereby indemnifies and holds Point Lookout and its parent,
affiliates and subsidiaries, harmless from and against any and all claims, liability, damage, or
loss arising out of any injury to or death of any person or damage to or loss or destruction of
property occurring in, on, or about the rooms and facilities in which they are located, from any
cause whatsoever except for the acts or omissions or negligence of Point Lookout, its agents,
employees, or subcontractors.

Initials:



It is Maine County Commissioners’s responsibility to inform all members of its group of the
applicable policies contained in this Agreement. Point Lookout accepts no liability for failure to
inform said individuals of such policies.

In the case of default in carrying out the terms, policies, or conditions contained in the
Agreement, the party in default agrees to pay reasonable attorneys’ fees and all costs of the other
party which may be incurred in enforcing this Agreement.

All changes to this Agreement must be in writing and must be signed by both parties hereto.

BANQUET CHARGES

Point Lookout adds a service charge of 18 % of the total food and beverage revenue, which will
be provided to wait staff employee, service employees and/or service bartenders. An
administrative fee of 2% of the total Food and Beverage revenue and applicable taxes will be
added. This administrative fee is retained by the Hotel and is not a tip, gratuity or service charge
for any employee and is not the property of the employee(s) providing service to you

An 8% State sales tax will also be applied to all Food and Beverage charges. A 5.5% State tax
will be applied to all Audio-Visual charges.

FooD & BEVERAGE POLICIES

At the time of receipt of this signed agreement, a Conference Service Manager will be assigned
to discuss all details regarding guest room reservations, meeting room setup, catering events and
Audio Visual.

Menu selections must be received by your assigned Conference Service Manager at least thirty
(30) days prior to the function. All food and beverage items consumed in banquet rooms and
outlets must be purchased at Point Lookout. Minimum guarantees for all food and beverage
functions must be stated to Point Lookout, in writing, at least (7) business days (not to include
Saturday and Sunday) prior to the event. All charges are based upon the guarantee, or the actual
number of guests served, whichever is greater. The resort will set for 5% over the guarantee.
Catering pricing is not guaranteed and may change at any time without notice. Catering pricing
will not be guaranteed until a specific menu(s) is chosen and Banquet Event Orders are signed.

Point Lookout is licensed to serve food and beverages. No food or beverages may be brought
into any public places at Point Lookout.

BEVERAGE LIABILITY

All alcoholic beverages to be served on Point Lookout’s premises for the event must be
dispensed by the resort’s servers or bartenders. Proper identification may be required to verify
age. We reserve the right to refuse service to any persons who do not display proper
identification or who may appear intoxicated.

Point Lookout adds a service charge of 18 % of the total food and beverage revenue, which will
be provided to wait staff employee, service employees and/or service bartenders. An
administrative fee of 2% of the total Food and Beverage revenue and applicable taxes will be

Initials



added. This administrative fee is retained by the Hotel and is not a tip, gratuity or service charge
for any employee and is not the property of the employee(s) providing service to you. An 8%
State sales tax will also be applied to all Food and Beverage charges.

PACKAGE RECEIVING/SHIPPING

Packages will be received no earlier than five (3) days prior to your event. To ensure proper
delivery, the following information must be included on all items shipped to the resort:

e Title of Event
e Date of Event
* Name of Conference Service Manager

If you are planning to ship items from Point Lookout, your item must be ready for shipment
when we receive it. This includes item(s) properly packaged, sealed, and labeled with a call tag.
UPS and FED-X do not pick-up here daily; only when requested and pick-up times vary between
11am and 2pm, Monday through Friday. We are not responsible for contacting shippers for call
tags as there is a fee associated with that pick-up. You must request your pick-up on your FED-X
or UPS account. All items going out must be brought to the Welcome Center where the guest
check-in desk is located. To ensure that your item(s) ship as requested, please adhere to these
guidelines to ensure your package arrives on time to the correct destination.

Listed below are phone numbers for both shippers, UPS and FED-X.

FED-X 1-800-463-3339 UPS 1-800-742-5877

MISCELLANEOUS CONDITIONS

Any alterations of the above contract are subject to availability. The group rate is derived based
upon your arrival pattern. Any alterations to your arrival pattern will result in a possible rate
change. Your rate will be based upon rates available at that time.

Point Lookout and Maine County Commissioners each agree to carry adequate liability and other
insurance protecting itself against any claims arising from any activities conducted at Point
Lookout Resort & Conference Center during the contracted event. Point Lookout will not assume
responsibility for damage or loss of any merchandise, printed matter or art placed at Point
Lookout during or following functions.

The performance of the agreement by either party is subject to acts of God, war, government
regulations, disaster, strikes, civil disorder, curtailment of transportation facilities, or any other
emergency making it inadvisable, illegal, or impossible to provide the facilities or to hold the
contracted event.

DEPOSIT PROCEDURE AND TIMELINE

An advance non-refundable deposit of $3,500.00 is required with the return of this signed
Agreement to hold your arrangements on a definite basis. This advance deposit is due to Point

Initials:



Lookout on Wednesday, 11/09/2016. Deposits may be made by check or credit card. Point
Lookout reserves the right to cancel this group agreement or withhold services should the deposit
schedule not be met.

Due Amount Received | Type | Description

11/09/2016 | $3,500.00 | $0.00 Deposit

PAYMENT AND BILLING PROCEDURES

In the event that credit is not requested or is not approved, pre-payment of your total estimated
Master Account will be due prior to your arrival, in accordance with a schedule to be determined
by Point Lookout Resort & Conference Center at its sole discretion. Under such circumstance,
failure to remit the appropriate pre-payment on a timely basis will be considered a cancellation
by the group and the group shall be liable for amounts as described in the cancellation
provisions.

The following items shall be charged to the Master Account: banquet food and beverage charges,
attrition charges, meeting space rental charges, cancellation charges, and any other charges billed
to the Master Account at the request of the authorized representative of the group, as designated
by the group in advance of the commencement of the meeting. Moreover, all third party charges
for services and/or supplies, not directly supplied by the Hotel, will be billed to the Master
Account whether they have been arranged for by Point Lookout Resort & Conference Center or
directly by the Group. The Group further agrees that all charges associated with use of the
grounds, function space, facilities and services of Point Lookout Resort & Conference Center by
its vendors shall be posted to the Master Account. All master account charges not paid within 10
days of the billing date will bear interest at the lower of the rate of 1.5% per month, compounded
monthly, if permissible by law, or the highest rate permissible by law. Should the hotel, in its
sole discretion, deem collection action necessary in regard to outstanding balances hereunder, all
costs associated with that collection action, including attorney’s fees, shall be posted to the
master account.

Individual guest accounts are payable at check-out by cash or credit card. The deposits and
payments will be applied to your master account in the form of credits.

A Credit Card is required as a secure form of payment with the return of the signed contract in
order to guarantee space. Please note, charges will only be applied to the card in the event
another valid form of payment has not been received at the conclusion of your program or in the
event of cancellation, or your program and payment obligations have not been met accordingly.

All Point Lookout Resort & Conference Center events require a guarantee of payment at the time
of booking by either credit card or cash deposit.

CASH, CHECK OR CREDIT CARD

With this option, the estimated total payment is due fourteen (14) days prior to the beginning of
your arrival date. Any remaining balance will be settled at departure.

Initials



Please select by circling the responsible party for each category:

Room & Tax: Master Account Individual
Incidentals: Master Account Individual
Please Sign:

Maine County Commissioners agrees to provide Point Lookout with written notice of any
decision to cancel or to otherwise essentially abandon its use of the Total Room Nights and
Catered Meal Functions (a “Cancellation”) within seven (7) business days of such a decision.
Maine County Commissioners acknowledges that a Cancellation would constitute a breach of
Maine County Commissioners obligation to Point Lookout Resort & Conference Center, and
Point Lookout Resort & Conference Center would be harmed by that cancellation. If a
Cancellation occurs, the parties agree that:

a. It would be difficult to determine the resort’s actual harm;

b. The sooner Point Lookout Resort & Conference Center receives notice of the
Cancellation, the lower its actual harm is likely to be, because the probability of
mitigating the harm by reselling space and functions is higher.

¢. The highest dollar amount in the chart set forth below reasonably estimates Point
Lookout’s harm for a last-minute cancellation, and through its use of a sliding scale that
reduces damages for earlier cancellations, the chart also reasonably estimates Point
Lookout’s ability to lessen its harm by reselling Maine County Commissioners’s space
and functions.

Maine County Commissioners therefore, agrees to pay Point Lookout Resort & Conference
Center, within (30) days after written notification to Point Lookout as liquidated damages and
not as a penalty, the amount listed in the Chart below.

CANCELLATION NOTICE

In the event of a group cancellation occurring 0 to 90 days prior to arrival, liquidated damages in
the amount of ninety percent of the "Anticipated Room Night and Banquet Food and Beverage
Revenue Figures" will be due, plus applicable taxes and service charges.

In the event of a group cancellation occurring 91 to 180 days prior to arrival, liquidated damages
in the amount of eighty percent of the "Anticipated Room Night and Banquet Food and Beverage
Revenue Figures" will be due, plus applicable taxes and service charges.

In the event of a group cancellation occurring 181 to 365 days prior to arrival, liquidated
damages in the amount of seventy percent of the "Anticipated Room Night and Banquet Food
and Beverage Revenue Figures" will be due, plus applicable taxes and service charges.

In the event of a group cancellation occurring between the time of acceptance of this contract and
366 days prior to arrival, liquidated damages in the amount of fifty percent of the "Anticipated
Room Night and Banquet Food and Beverage Revenue Figures" will be due, plus applicable
taxes and service charges.

initials:



Provided that Maine County Commissioners notifies Point Lookout Resort & Conference Center
of the cancellation, and pays the above liquidated damages, Point Lookout agrees not to seek
additional damage from Maine County Commissioners relating to the Cancellation.

ACCEPTANCE

Please sign and return a copy of the contract by Wednesday, 11/09/2016. This agreement will
constitute a binding contract between Point Lookout and Maine County Commissioners. The
individuals signing below represent that each is authorized to bind his or her party to this
contract. If this contract is not received by the above date, all rooms and space referred to herein
will be released, and neither party will have any further obligations under this agreement.

Point Lookout Resort & Conference Center and Maine County Commissioners have agreed to
and have executed this Contract by their authorized representative as of the dates indicated
below:

CONTRACT TERMS

To guarantee rates quoted, the availability of sleeping rooms requested, and all other terms, this
contract must be signed and returned by 11/09/2016 or Point Lookout reserves the right to
release the guest rooms and function space held.

I hereby accept the above stated terms and conditions, and further warrant that I have authority to
sign on behalf of Maine County Commissioners.

ORGANIZATION REPRESENTATIVE POINT LOOKOUT REPRESENTATIVE
TITLE TITLE
SIGNATURE/DATE ~ SIGNATURE/DATE

Initials



POINT
LOOKOUT

NORTHPORT. MAINE

CREDIT CARD AUTHORIZATION FORM

GROUP NAME:

CONTACT NAME:

EVENT DATE:

POINT LOOKOUT CONTACT:

CREDIT CARD TYPE: M/C VISA AMEX DISC

CREDIT CARD NUMBER:

EXPIRATION: CVV:

CARDHOLDER NAME;

CARDHOLDER BILLING ADDRESS:

I am authorizing Point Lookout Resort and Conference Center to charge this
credit card according to the contracted deposit schedule.

AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE:

initials






VI A.

M.C.C.A.

Rosemary Kulow
Executive Director

Peter Baldacci, President
Penobscot County

Lauren Haven
Office Manager

Thomas Coward, Vice President
Cumberland County

Michael Cote, Secretary-Treasurer
York County

Maine County Commissioners Association

4 Gabriel Drive, Suite 2
Augusta, ME 04330
207-623-4697
www.mainecounties.org

Executive Director’s Report
November 9, 2016

Issues & Activities:

Budget — The MCCA Budget and Finance Committee and I have concluded work on the proposed
budget for 2017, and it will be presented to the MCCA Board of Directors in December. At that time,
the Board of Directors will vote either to accept the budget as presented by the committee or amend it
for presentation to the full membership at the Annual Meeting in January.

Legislative Sponsors — In order to line up possible sponsors of legislation, I sent out a request to all
counties asking for names of legislators thought to be willing to support the cause of county government
in legislative matters. I want to thank those of you who responded. Thanks to your help we now have
quite an extensive list of sympathetic legislators, which may be extended, depending on election results.

Audit — The auditor, with whom MCCA has contracted, Ron Beaulieu, visited the MCCA office with an
associate in late October to review MCCA records and office procedures. Prior to that, they had been
performing audit functions remotely from their office, as our office had previously provided the
documents they requested to review. We should be receiving the 2014-2015 audit report in the near
future.

Training for County Commissioners — An all-day training session for new and current county
commissioners is scheduled for 8:30 a.m. - 4:30 p.m. December 9, 2016, at the Augusta Civic Center.
Various topics of interest to county commissioners will be covered by 4 or 5 presenters. The morning
session will cover county commissioners’ duties and responsibilities as defined in Maine Statutes. Then,
special shorter sessions will discuss (1) risk management, (2) the Freedom of Access Act and open
meeting law, and (3) jail standards and inspections. Refreshments and lunch will be provided for
attendees. It is possible that a minimal registration fee of $25 may be charged to cover expenses;
however, that remains to be determined at the Board of Directors’ meeting November 9™






VI A.

Power Point on Marijuana in Colorado

Please see the attached copy of a Power Point presentation that provides highlights of Colorado’s first
year of experience with legalized marijuana. I can provide additional insight from the conference call
we had with the executive directors of the Colorado and Washington state associations of counties if the
board is so inclined.

Lauren Haven’s Third Anniversary — This October 28" marked the third anniversary of Lauren’s date
of hire as Administrative Assistant, then Office Manager for the MCCA. I conducted an evaluation of
her performance and congratulated and thanked her for her exemplary service. We are blessed to have
Lauren on the MCCA staff, and I know you join me in thanking her for all the tremendous work she
does.

Retirement — The attached letter provides notice of my retirement from the MCCA.

Meetings/Events since the October 12, 2016 Board of Directors’ Meeting

Oct. 13 LPC Conference Call regarding Legalization of Recreational Marijuana

Oct. 18 Kennebec County Commissioners’ Meeting

Oct. 19 NCCAE Webinar — Pitfalls of Decision Making

Oct. 20 NACo Agriculture & Rural Affairs Steering Committee Conference Call Meeting
Oct. 25 MCCA Budget & Finance Committee Conference Call Meeting

Oct. 26 NACo Northeast Region Conference Call Meeting

Nov. 4 Convention Planning Committee Meeting in Belfast

Upcoming Planned eetings/ vents (as of this writing):

Nov. 17 MACCAM Meeting at MCCA Office @ 1:00 p.m.

Nov. 22-28  Vacation

Dec. 9 Training for County Commissioners at Augusta Civic Center @ 8:30 a.m. - 4:30 p.m.
Dec. 14 MCCA Board of Directors’ Meetings @ 9:00 & 10:00 a.m.

As always, if you have any questions or comments about my activities or reports, please don’t hesitate to
let me know. Thank you for your attention and service.

Respectfully submitted

Rosemary Kulow
Executive Director






10d3d MOYS

19jeT Jea) auQ
:0pelojo) ul euenliiep



ésuonsany




suonelsadQ mouo |edaj|| jo UoIINI3SO.Id JO YoeT.
SUOI1D111S3Y 3SN 191

SUJ122U0)
A1ajeg pue suoidadsuj Juswpedaq Suipjing .

sanss| supjueg .
$9|q1p3 Jo Alajes 9yl JO9AQ SUIDIUO0D) PAaNUIIUO) .

si3injoejnuep
}9NPOo.Id pasnju| o suodadsu] uaydinn) .

ope.lojo) U] YHpn suljeaq Ajpuasan)
9Je Saljuno) jeyl sanss| 1Yo



1=ew
}oe|q 01 ¥oeq SIaWwnsuod AP ||IM 1eyl sl yulod Suiddi
9yl 2/9ym pue euenlliew |euoljeaJdal uo uoljexel

01 103dsaJ Yilm ,yonuw 003 Sl yonw moy,, 48A0 SuJaduo)

Ajluoyine
sIy1 Ajlied 03 gTOg Ul uoie|sida] sulq Aew 2D

}0[|eq |e20] @y} uo uonsanb
xe} 9S19Xa Jo/pue sajes Ajunod e 1nd 01 Allioyine
|e20| H21|dX JO uolIsanb ay3 si paAjosalun ||13S

(p,3U02) uoIlEXE] PpUEB SNUINIY



8TET GH Ul Pays!|qelsa
(xe1 %g°T "2°1) suonaIpstn( |e30] 03 YoegaIeYS %ST

%GT ueyl Jaysiy os jouued 1l 1ng ‘sel
Xe} S9|es 3l asealdap JO aseaJdul ued ainie|sida| ay

"X} S9|BS %6°Z |eWIOoU S,21e1S 9]
aA0ge pue JoAo pasodwil g 01 Xel sa|es [e123ds %0T «

pue ({9 Jusawpuswy
ui 1IN0 pie|) uoildnJaisuod |elided |0oyaIs 40}
payJewJes euenfiyew paleAI}jnd UO Xe) 3SIIXD %GT e
:SJuauodwod Sulsies aNUAASJ d3eIS OM] Paysl|ge1sa
1eyl €T0¢C J2qWIAON Ul uonnsanb 1oj|eq |n}ssa3ong

uoljexe] pue snusAagy



soaAo|dwa Aq euenlliew }o

2SN 9y Sul1d141SaJd saidljod aAey 01 siaAojdwa }Jo
Ali[1qe ay1 1094je 03 10 2oe|dyJom ayi ul euenfliew
JO 8uimous Jo ‘9jes ‘uoileliodsuedy ‘Aejdsip
‘19jsuely ‘uoissassod ‘uonndwnsuod ‘asn ayl
91epowwodde 4o JwJiad 03 JoAojdwa ue alinbal
0] PapuUalUI SI UOIFIAS SIY3 Ul Sulyiop,, (e)(9)

‘9T U0I1333S ‘||IAX 3211V ‘UOIINUISUO) OpeJo|o)

syybiry si19hojdwzy



102 ‘6Z Any “uoiepaey deyg smuye Acgembes 5oy uo esgPeds J0j SERUNCS IEADIADI JITIL0D 88T8id ATHMO Sesodind vogRuLIGNS JOJ 19 03 ousbaig sy Aq pegper)
Auo Bugsa) g BuumaeNUE 1PNPald ‘vogeAynD Guwoiry [ |

Ao uogeaginD buwoly [T 1suogeanay o) rWIN unsna 1o uoneiBiN BUIMOINY Inq ‘SWaLSIqEST MON Suriaiasd [T
pay3 weuceon o ueg [ ] Gugsa) P SULMPBINUBK PNPOLd ‘vogeARIND ‘safes bumoiry [ |
sofauos ey
eoug sewy s : aelg e o
Kapecry
EMmoD| juousmsy
wadayn osSEd 5 oyt
LEsi
. Wed
LOSED) I seiinoQ
= ,..luﬂ..
sumpy l
puesg
ueflony
i
PRM
sdipyg
ueBo] Suwpey
¥ombpag

euen(iiepy [euoijealddy - sniels Aioje|nbay Ajunon




Ajlj1oeq 8unsaj euenluae



Aj1de4 sulanyoejnuelp
}0npoid euenlliep °€



Ajj1oe4 uoneann|n) euenllue ¢



IS T L == S SN W L ST SSRIE, S S e

9101S euenllie 1239y T



S9sud2I| euenlliew

|euoileasdad Jo sadA) Jualiallip 1noj a9yl

JO 2i10W JO SUO MOj|e 0} IpIdap ued HHO4d
3] ‘sassauisng mojje 0] SapIdap AJunod e j|

19Yia80)|e sassauisng euenfliew
|euollealdal ueq 0} paziioyine ale saljuno)

]OJ3UO0) |eD20]



SCEL-ET 9H
SLEL-ET 9H

€8C-ET1 °S
L1ET-ET 9H

:uolje|sisa
sunuawajduw




22e|d ul sI 1eyy awayas Aiolensdal
9y31 pue Aiisnpui euenlliew |euol}eatdal MaiAaJ
0] SJedA € ul 92404 }Se] BUSAUOIJ P|NOYS JOUIBA0D M

(‘019
‘lenoidde asn pue| 3jdwis ‘@sua2l| |e20|) JUSWUISA0S
1220 9Y3 01 dn sI 91| $)00| |[enosdde 1eyl 1eymn )

|lenosdde/uoileziioyine SaAlS JUSWUIBAOS
|EJO| |13UN |BUOINPUOI 3 P|NOYS S3SUBJI| panssi-a1els M

S99} dunesado,, auljap pue ysijqeisi O

suoljepuawuwioddy
dnouig 3unjiopp Allaoyiny |ed07



ve

alocie/LL

/

N £ e D

™\

"

'sdnoJ9 SupJOM G JO paslidwo) ‘{9 Jusawpuawy Suiuawa|dwi

UO 3in1e|siS3| 0] SUOIIEPUDWILIOIAI BB 0] 9210J YSe] SI183UI JOUIIAOD) «

92104 )Se] 19 Juswpuawy



((4) S ‘9T UOII3S ‘|[IAX 3J2IHY ‘UOIINHISUOD OPEIO|0D)
«SLNINHSNAVLSI VNVNIIYVIN 404 S334
NOILYDI1ddV ANV ‘ONISNIDIT ‘ONILVYIdO TVNNNV
10 31NA3IHIS V ONIHSITAVLSI " SNOILVINDIY

HO SIDNVNIQHO LOVNI AVIA ALITVOOT V,,

9 JudWpuawy Japun
SI9MO0d JUSWUIDAOL) [ED20]



((4) S ‘9T U0O1193S ‘[IIAX 3[213Y ‘UOIIN}IISUO) OpeIO|0))
«(U) HdVYOVYYHVd HLIM IDNVAYO0IIV

NI ALIT¥D01 IHL A9 d3NSSI ISNIDIT V 40 NOILVIOAIY
ANV ‘NOISN3dSNS ‘IDNVNSSI IHL 04 SIYNAID0Yd
ONIHSIT9VLSI ‘SNOILVYIdO INJINHSIGVIST
VNVNIMYVYIN 40 Y3GINNN ANV YINNVIN 3DV1d

"JINIL FJHL ONINYIAOD ‘NOILI3S SIHL OL INVNSYNd
d31OVN3I NOILY1SID3T YO SNOILYINDIY HLIM HO
NOILD3S SIHL HLIM LD114NOD NI LON ‘SNOILVINDIY
4O SIDONVNIAYO 1DVNI AVIN ALITYDOO1V,

79 Jusawipuawy J3pun
SI9MOd JUBWIUIDAOL) [eD07]



((4) § ‘9T U0I1123S ‘|IIAX 3]211Y ‘UOIIN}ISUOD OpeIo|0))
+J4NSVIIN 34993438 4O AILVILINI NV HONOYHL
40 JDONVNIGYO NV 40 INJINIDVNI IHL HONOYHL
SIYOLS YNVNIYVIN TIV.LIY YO ‘S3ILINIDV4 ONILSIL
VNVNIYVIA ‘STILITIDYE ONIYNLOVANNYIA LDNA0Yd
VNVNIYYIA ‘STILITIDVE NOILVAILIND YNVNIIYVYIN
4O NOILVY3d0 IHL LIGIHOYd AVIN ALNYD01 Y,

{9 JUdWpulawWy J3pun
SI9MOd JUBWUIDAOL) [e207]






T i o~
A

FRt} (R X.]

ny BYINITIMIAL




woo sdew-odol-jenbip 500z Wwbuidon

SOr3INQD VATINHRAY
VIHLS0O

ViVId V1
vove v 2180
SYININV 8§ . -
YSOWV1Y | SANVYD OiY \
ONVIHINH e Nvar $3MO
NIN M 100
0u310
SYIMOU4 iN38 ATIVASNIH TINOIN NVS
FNDVYNOVS AVNNO
0183nd
AIMOUD
VMOIN INOW3 Y4 3SOYINOW
NIOONM ¥37171al NOSINNND
ANNIAIHD osvd 13 vi130
vSan
NYvd
SVI9N0a gk NNl
NOSUVD LiX 1438713 « Y
4
.\dud LIMNNG aBINYD
On o} N33y
SOHVdVUY ..me LS 319v3
NOLONIMSYM SWYGY . i
43ANZ0 S .-_3 OONVIS O
1
VHWAA 9
caumoos | 9 nos ANYYD
NYOUOW
1100y
SdiITHd a1am NOSYOVE V340N
NYEO1 AWV
NIMOTIS




ialelelagien
NIOSE 0.1 2 304 S E.0)

0D 3\ 3I0H 31qqey 3Y3 umoq
:ZL0Z 19QUWIDAON



}SAjeuy Adljod ‘uewb.iag o113

ope.ojo) ul
2J3uaLIadx3g Ajuno) 3yl

LNSQRSW . Nuﬁhaa\w\ . MNQQ&W.W

DNI ‘SZLLNNOD OAViI0100

0



UOISIAI(] JuaWad.iofug pubnfLIDp

'SONUIA3J Xe] 91B1S JO U0I193]|02 Jadoud
a1 2nsua pue A}ajes Jawnsuod apinoad
‘UOISJBAIP SZIWIUIW [|IM S|00] 3SaY3] JoY1980] &

aoueuajulew spJooal uoljoesuel)
Xe] pue a|es Jo julod pajepuell e
spoyjaw
uolonpoJd ajeJjuaduod pajiwli| e

}iomauwe.l
A1031enbay aAIsudyaiduwo)



uoisiAl(q uawadiofug puopnlLippy

3ulsal Aiojepuew .

suoljesado asueljdwod
JUSW2J40JUD J3Y10 pue aSesapun .

suolldadsul
92oueldwod 91lSs-uo padunouueun .

9JUE||I9AINS O3PIA

:S9pNJoul os|e 1eyl yJomawe.)
Aloje|n3a. ||esano ue o Jusuodwod
|e211140 e SsI walsAs uoeay Alojuanu| s

yiomauwe.l]
Aloje|nbay aAIsudysatdwo)d



2WNSU0)
ued auQ aJayA\ UO SUOIPIISY <«

uolnyeladQ JO SINOH UO SUOIIDIIISOY «
Sjunowy aseydind UO SUOIIDIIISOY «
Jjuswabeue|y uoilonNpodd «

s93}kels buLidp.log
0} UOISIDAIQ buniwi’



Ajljlgeaoel] pue All[Igeaunoddy AJOJUSAUT <
swe|y /9oue||IoAdnNg 03pPIA «

asuodsay juieldwon «

JUDWISSDSSY MSIY «

suoldadsuy «
BullojIuUON «

buisuadg «

JUDWRI3 |eulwil) buipwin



SYoayD dueljdwo) abelapun <«
|BAOWID DISBM <«

buibeoed «

buijage «

buisizaApy <«

s.1ouly Buil}dd30.d suolje|nbay



0l

S19p|oyaxe1s Jno Jo |je ym bulisuped =

s93e3s Jayjo 0]
euen(liew poazijeba| JO UOISIBAIP Byl Bunpuanald =

Alasnpul euenf(iiew
|eba| ul s|@yed pue sbueb ‘sasiidiajua
|euiwid JO JUDWIBA|OAUI 3] bunjuanald =

sloujw 03 euen(iew Jo uonnguisip bunuanald =

:s)sodaping

sysodaping



saaAojdwg/iogeT
Allunwwo) ssaulsng
Sa13uN0)

anbea |jedpiuniy
Japualaq dl1jgnd
|eJauan) Asulony
Asuiony 1P1ISIg
201ISN[ d|IUBAN(
ueldIsAud

10SS3J0.1d Me <
SI2WNSU0D) <«
Alasnpui euenfuep «
ubledwe)d 9V «
SNUDADY <«
2.4n3|Nd1Iby <«

A¥djes dl|qnd «
UljeaH Jl|qnd «
sJoje|siba 93e1s «

sdno.n Jopjoyjeis



UOISIAIQ Juswaolojug euen(liep\ opeliojo)
lojoauiqg
SO SImaT

ope.ojo) ul euen(Lie|y jo aje1s ayl




‘ainonu)s Aloje|nbal s .opelojo)
Buidojonap pue Buinoidwi 8nuilUOD 0} PBUSAUOD Usaq
aney sdnolb Bupom Japjoyayels alow g ‘usy) aouls

‘€102 ‘6 1equisydag uo pajdope Ajjeuly
aJam sajnJ Jusuewsad ay} ‘Buiiesy o1ignd Jayjoue Jayy

Juswanoldwil Joj seale ssnasip pue sajnd Aouabiswa
ay) mainal 0} sbunesw ajeledss | piey sdnoub
Bunjiom Japjoyayels Jualayip G ‘Jawuwns ay} yJnoybnoly

‘L0z ‘I Aine Agq suonenbal ydope

0] 9)epuew |BUOIIN}IISUOD S})| }@8W pue UoISSNISIp ainin}
10J ylomauwel} e ysijqgeiss o} suone|nbal Aouabiswe
pajdope anuaAay Jo Juswiedaq opelojo) au) ‘Ajleiu|

9NUSAdY JO Juswiedaq ope.aojo)



"Sjuswpuswe [euoljippe snoJawnu ul pajnsal
pue sBbuueay o1ignd jeuonippe paJinbai yoiym ‘sseosoud
oAnejsibs| [lewlou ay} ybnoayy Juem [|3s ||iq yoe3

'uoissas au} ul JJo| sAep Buiyiom || Jnoge yum (gL

-€L9H pue ‘/Lgl-¢€lgH ‘€82-€19S) S)euss pue asnoH
9y} Ojul padonpoJjul alem uone|siba) Jo sedald saiy |

‘Aj2a1jua N0 o] BWOS pue ‘papuswe sIsylo
‘uofje|siba| Yelp UIYlIM papnjoul suolsinoid uiepas aney
0} PaJOA 99)ILIWIOY J98]9S Ulof 8y} ‘sbuliesy ay) Jayy

‘Slapjoyayels wol) Indul jeuoljippe uiejqo o} sbuueasy
olignd pjay pue uodal 82104 Yse] 8y} ul sbulpul ay)
pamalnal 88a)llwo)) }09|8S JuIof uesiued-iq ‘|jeloadg

Algwassy |elaudac) opelo|o)



suollepuswwodal Aoijod juaiaylp
0G JOA0 yum Juswnoop abed Ggg| aAisuayaidwod
e Jaylabo)} jnd 82104 yse| 8y} syjuow Jnoj uey} ssa| U|

'SJ9]OA 8U] JO ||IM
ay] uswa|dwi 0y Aoijod dojaaap 03 Jayjel Ing uoljezijebs)
JO SjuaW 8y} 8jegap 0} Jou pajonuisul Ajjealyioads

9210} Yse} ay)

JO Ylom ayj 0} Buuq |Im Jaqwiaw yoes Jey} saAjosdsiad
9SJoAIp 8] Bunoadsal, awl) awes ayj 1e ajlym
_suonnjos onewbeud pue [eanoeld Buipuly, yum pabiley)

‘0 JUBWpuUsSWY
Jo uonejuawsa|dwi ayy 10} 82104 Yse] , aAne|sIbo)
-a1d e Buneauo Joplo BAljND8xXd ue paubls JOUIBA0Y)

92104 ¥Ske] {9 Juswpuawyy



(1(g)9l 083 |IIAX S|2IMY 888
‘dwiay |eujsnpul JO ajes pue

Buissaooud ‘uoneanno ayy buiuienob uone|sibs| joeUS
lleys Alquasse |esauab syl ‘10z ‘L AIne uey) Joye| 10N .

dwaH



Apoe4 bunsa| euenluel v

Aljoe4 buunjoeinuely 1oNpold euenluely "¢
Ajjioe uoneainy euenfuep g

2101S euenlle |1e1ey |

:(sqNY) sluswysijgelsy euenfiiepy j1ejay jo sadAl

sajeg euenliiepy [1e}aYy paje|nbay



dway |eljsnpul Jo ajes pue ‘bBuissasoud
uoneAl}nd sy} jwuad o) ainje|sibo| ajels ay) saldinbay

|oyooje 0] Alejiwis pajnguisip pue ‘paxe)
‘paje|nbal si euenlluew yoiym ul walsAs e saysijgelsy

Jap|o pue abe Jo siealk |z s)npe
10} me| opelojo) Japun |eba| euenlluew Jo Buimolb
-oWwoy pue uoissassod pajwi| ‘esn ajeAld ay) saye

euen(iiew Jo asn-}jnpe ay}
Buimojje sassed {9 Juswpuawy

;2102 J19CUIBAON



10d43d MOY9

Jaje] Jea) auQ
:opelojo) ul euenluiep



M.C.C.A.

o Rosemary Kulow

Executive Director

Peter Baldacci, President
Penobscot County Commissioner

Lauren Haven
Office Manager

Thomas Coward, Vice President
Cumberland County Commissioner

Michael Cote, Secretary-Treasurer
York County Commissioner

Maine County Commissioners Association

4 Gabriel Drive, Suite 2
Augusta, ME 04330
207-623-4697
www.mainecounties.org

October 25, 2016

Dear MCCA Board of Directors:

This is to provide notice of my upcoming retirement from the position of
Executive Director of the Maine County Commissioners Association, effective
March 17, 2017.

Serving Maine’s county commissioners and representing county government
interests at the Maine Legislature and elsewhere around the state and nation has
been a rewarding experience, and I have been honored to represent Maine counties.

I wish you all the best as you continue to tackle the tough challenges facing
county government and trust that county governments across Maine will thrive and
strengthen because of your leadership.

Thank you for providing me the opportunity to serve in this capacity.

Sincerely, %’/

Rosemary E. Kulow
MCCA Executive Director






MAINE COUNTY COMMISSIONERS ASSOCIATION
October 2016 Financial Report

Attached please find the monthly financial reports for the month October 2016. The Balance
Sheet shows total assets, including the money market account for MainePERS, and liabilities at
$167,117.59; therefore, the amount in the General Fund equals $128,344.93. October bank
account debits totaled $34,188.80; and $2,081.78 income was credited to the checking account.
The bank balance on October 31% was $127,164.93, as some transactions had not yet cleared the
bank by the end of the month.

Regarding the annual convention, we have received a total of $38,938.92 (82%) of the $47,500
revenue estimated in the convention budget. Expenses have also been less than anticipated,
however, at $20,083.79 so far. This is 57% of the $35,500 estimated in the budget. At this point
it is looking like the net income from the convention is $18,845.13, but next month’s report
should have the final totals.

With about 83% of the year complete, $205,275 (81.4%) of the $252,150 budgeted revenue had
been received by October 31st. On the expenditure side, $16,101 (6.4% of the total budget) was
expended in October; and a total of $189,174 (75%) had been expended year-to-date.

Additional details of financial transactions appear in the Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual report.
Finances are within budget, and there are no problems at this time.

Please don’t hesitate to let me know if you have any questions or would like to see anything
different in the financial reports.

Respectfully submitted, %

Rosemary E. Kulow
Executive Director

Accepted by: Date:

Peter Baldacci, President Thomas Coward, Vice-President

Michael Cote, Secretary-Treasurer






11/03/16

Maine County Commissioners Association
Balance Sheet (accrual)

As of October 31, 2016

ASSETS
Current Assets
Checking/Savings
MCCA Checking-Savings Bank
Money Market Account
Petty Cash Account
Total Checking/Savings

Accounts Receivable
Receivables

Total Accounts Receivable

Total Current Assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable
Accounts Payable
Total Accounts Payable

Other Current Liabilities
1000-00 - Employee Health Insurance Contr
1001-00 - MainePERS Employee Contribution
Total Other Current Liabilities

Total Current Liabilities

Total Liabilities

Equity
3200-00 - Fund Balance to Current Yr Inc
3900-00 - Earnings
Net Income

Total Equity

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY

October
2016

127,164.93
38,772.66
200.00

166,137.59

980.00

980.00

167,117.59

167,117.59

-725.28
725.28

730.57
478.11
252.46

-977.74

-977.74

-59,216.00
211 209.23

16,102.10
168,095.33

167,117.59

Page 1 of 1






10:30 AM
11/03/16

Beginning Balance
Cleared Transactions
Deposits and Credits - 1 item
Total Cleared Transactions

Cleared Balance

Register Balance as of 10/19/2016
Ending Balance

Maine County Commissioners Association

Reconciliation Summary
Money Market Account, Period Ending 10/19/2016

October
2016

38,769.69

2.97

2.97

38,772.66

38,772.66
38,772.66

Page 1 of 1






10:57 AM

11/03/116 . I .
Maine County Commissioners Association

Reconciliation Summary
MCCA Checking-Savings Bank, Period Ending 10/31/2016

October
2016

]

Beginning Balance 159,271.95
Cleared Transactions

Checks and Payments - 19 items -34,188.80

Deposits and Credits - 2 items 2,081.78

Total Cleared Transactions -32,107.02

Cleared Balance 127,164.93

Register Balance as of 10/31/2016 127,164.93

New Transactions

Checks and Payments - 3 items -1,316.04

Total New Transactions -1,316.04

Ending Balance 125,848.89

Page 1 of 1






11:00 AM

11/03/16 . . L
Maine County Commissioners Association

Reconciliation Detail
MCCA Checking-Savings Bank, Period Ending 10/31/2016

Date Num Name Amount Balance
Beginning Balance 159,271.95
Cleared Transactions
Checks and Payments - 19 items
9/27 3723 Leon Souweine -600.00 -600.00
9/27 3724 Staples Credit Plan -23.99 -623.99
10/7 EFT Bangor Payroll -1,851.83 -2,475.82
10/12 3728 Hilton Garden Inn Bangor -16,744.45 -19,220.27
10/12 3725 MainePERS -695.58 -19,915.85
10/12 3727 Kulow, Rosemary -646.15 -20,562.00
10/12 3732 Haven, Lauren -328.05 -20,890.05
10/12 3731 Kulow, Rosemary -327.88 -21,217.93
10/12 3730 Country Cafe Catering -270.00 -21,487.93
10/12 EFT Time Warner Cable -167.90 -21,655.83
10/12 3726 Capitol Computers -125.00 -21,780.83
10/12 3729 EiPrinting -50.45 -21,831.28
10/14 EFT Bangor Payroll -1,851.83 -23,683.11
10/20 3736 Maine Farm Bureau -1,497.17 -25,180.28
10/20 3735 Camden National Bank -1,385.87 -26,566.15
10/20 3733 US Bank -275.00 -26,841.15
10/20 3734 Great Falls Insurance Company -48.00 -26,889.15
10/21 EFT Bangor Payroll -1,851.83 -28,740.98
10/28 EFT Bangor Payroll -5,447.82 -34,188.80
Total Checks and Payments -34,188.80 -34,188.80
Deposits and Credits - 2 items
10 11 2,076.00 2,076.00
10 31 5.78 2,081.78
Total Deposits and Credits 2,081.78 2,081.78
Totat Cleared Transactions -32,107.02 -32,107.02
Cleared Balance -32,107.02 127,164.93
Register Balance as of 10/31/2016 -32,107.02 127,164.93
New Transactions
Checks and Payments - 3 items
11/3 3738 Penobscot County Treasurer -591.65 -591.65
11/3 3737 MainePERS -556.46  -1,148 11
11/3 EFT Time Warner Cable -167.93 -1,316.04
Total Checks and Payments -1,316.04  -1,316.04
Total New Transactions -1,316.04 -1 316.04
Ending Balance -33,423.06 125,848.89

Page 1 of 1






11/03/16

Accrual Basi . o e
cerual Basts Maine County Commissioners Association

Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual
January through October 2016

2016 Oct Jan - Oct $ Over % of
Budget 2016 2016 Budget Budget
Income
4100-00 - Convention Income
4120-00 - Registration 28,000 2,076 17,587 -10,413 63%
4130-00 - Sponsorship 8,000 3,800 -4,200 48%
4140-00 - Vendor 11,500 17,552 6,052 163%
Total 4100-00 - Convention Income 47,500 38,939 -8,561 82%
4300-00 - Dues 140,240 140,240 100%
4400-00 - Other Income 1,100 487 -613 44%
4500-00 - NACo Roster 500 500 100%
4600-00 - MCCA Risk Pool Assesssment 25,000 25,000 100%
4800-00 - MainePERS Surplus Funds 6,500 -6,500
4810-00 - Interest Earned 45 9 109 64 242%
4920-00 - Transfer in from Fund Balance 31,265 -31,265
Total Income 252,150 2,085 205,275 -46,875 81%
Gross Profit 252,150 2,085 205,275 -46,875 81%
Expense
5000-00 - Payroll Expenses
5020-00 - Payroll Fees 1,850 136 1,468 -382 79°
5030-00 - FICA 7,800 566 6,235 -1,565 80Y
5040-00 - MainePERS Contributions 6,500 696 5,543 -957 85Y
5050-00 - Salary-Office Manager 38,000 2,912 31,301 -6,699 82%
5060-00 - Salary-Executive Director 74,500 5,649 60,729 -13,771 82%
Total 5000-00 - Payroll Expenses 128 650 9,959 105,276 23 374 82%
§100-00 - Insurance
5110-00 - Health Insurance 21,000 1,740 17,404 -3,596 83%
5120-00 - Commercial, Crime, D&O Ins 2,100 1,911 -189 91%
5130-00 - Workers Comp 650 48 334 -316 51%
5140-00 - Unemployment Comp Ins 500 409 -91 82%
Total 5100-00 - Insurance 24,250 1,788 20,058 -4,192 83%
6010-00 - Prof. Services
6012-00 - Prof Services - Legal Services 500 -500
6013-00 - Financial Audit 4,800 -4,800
Total 6010-00 - Prof. Services 5,300 -5,300
6030-00 - Lobbying
6031-00 - Lobbying Reg 200 200 100%

Page 1 of 3



11/03/16

Accrual Basi ; issi iati
corual Basis Maine County Commissioners Association

Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual
January through October 2016

2016 Oct Jan - Oct $ Over % of
Budget 2016 2016 Budget Budget

Total 6030-00 - Lobbying 200 200 100%
6040-00 - NACO Expenses

6041-00 - Conferences 8,500 8,445 -55 99%
Total 6040-00 - NACO Expenses 8,500 8,445 -55 99%
6050-00 - Education and Training 500 386 -114 7%
6100-00 - Bank Charges 50 -50
6110-00 - Convention Expense

6113-00 - Entertainment/Speakers 6,500 900 -5,600 14%

6114-00 - MCCA Staff Registration Exp. 1,000 983 983 -17 98%

6118-00 - Meeting Exp. 25,000 16,780 16,980 -8,020 68%

6121-00 - Supplies 2,500 236 389 -2,111 16%

6124-00 - Comm. Retirement Plaques 500 250 -250 50%
Total 6110-00 - Convention Expense 35,500 17,999 19,502 -15,998 55%
6140-00 - Copies-Printing

6142-00 - Directory 825 69 -756 8%

6143-00 - Other Copying or Printing 150 -150
Total 6140-00 - Copies-Printing 975 69 -906 7%
6145-00 - Dues Expense 1,400 1,423 23 102%
6150-00 - Equipment - Office

6151-00 - Computer Hardware/Software 1,500 339 -1,161 23%

6152-00 - IT Services 2,800 125 1,271 -1,529 45%

6153-00 - Photocopier Lease 2,000 275 2,681 681 134%

6154-00 - Printer & Supplies 1,200 447 -753 37%

6155-00 - Telephone System 200 -200

6156-00 - Other 500 304 -196 61%
Total 6150-00 - Equipment - Office 8,200 400 5,042 -3,158 61%
6160-00 - Fees 100 36 -64 36%
6170-00 - Meeting Expense 308

6171-00 - Annual Meeting 1,500 1,325 -175 88%

6172-00 - County Officials' Workshop 250 -250

6173-00 - Monthly 3,250 2,446 -804 75%

6174-00 - Retreat Meeting 800 -800

6175-00 - Meetings - Other 800 98 337 -463 42%
Total 6170-00 - Meeting Expense 6,600 406 4,108 -2,492 62%
6180-00 - Mileage & Travel Expense 5,200 1,027 5,672 472 109%

Page 2 of 3



11/03/16
Accrual Basis

6195-00 -
6215-00 -
6230-00 -
6235-00 -
6240-00 -

Maine County Commissioners Association
Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual

January through October 2016

Office Space Rental
Postage-Shipping
Advertising

Supplies

Telephone, Fax & Internet

6241-00 - Cell Phone
6243-00 - Phone, Fax & Internet
Total 6240-00 - Telephone, Fax & Internet

6250-00 -
6260-00 -

Website
Contingency

Total Expense

Net Income

2016 Oct Jan - Oct $ Over % of
Budget 2016 2016 Budget Budget
18,375 1,497 14,972 -3,403 81%
250 130 -120 52%
750 -750
2,500 121 935 -1,565 37%
1,600 199 1,235 -365 77%
2,000 169 1,673 -327 84%
3,600 367 2,908 -692 81%
250 12 -238 5%
1,000 -1,000
252,150 33,565 189,174 -62,976 75%
-31,480 16,101 16,101 100%

Page 3 of 3






940 | abed

000 06291 a|qED JUIBAA BWIL 143 ziol
06°291- 06'291- 8|qeD Jaulepn awi| zLol
000 00521 sigindwio) jopded 9z.e 2oL
00621~ 00'SZ1- signdwo) toynded zLHoL
000 85°669 Sy3deuep 6ziE ZLI0L
85669~ 85°G69- Sy3dsuep 1L/0L
000 £8°168'L 9L/2/0L ) 92/6 Josm Jo} jjoihed lloJAed JoBueg 143 01
£8°168°'L-  €8°'168'L- 91/2/01 0} 9Z/6 %eam Jo} |joihed lloiked jobueg |y-9L02 /0L
162 162
16T 162 JsasB| L1/01
€0'E8Y'LE- €O'E8Y'LE-
€0'E8Y'LE- 8L°G ysassy| LE/OL
1888y LE- 28 LtY'S- 9L/€2/0) O} L1/0| Yeam 1oy |joihed lo1Aed sobueg 143 8z/0L
66°0¥0'92- €8°168'L- 9L/91/01 01 01/01 YoM o} |j0)hed llo:hked sobueg 143 12/01
g1'681'¥ve- LL'L6P'L- uay 820 Ba.ng WJe sulep 9elE  0Z/0L
66'169'2Z- 18'G8E'}- yueg [euoheN uaspwe) GELE 0Z/0L
ZL90e'Le- 00'8h- Auedwog edueinsu sjjed 1esi9 veLe  02/0L
zl'8se'le- 00'sl2- jueg sn €ELE 0Z/0L
ZL'£86'02- £8°158'L- 91/6/01 O} £/01 98Mm 10} jjoiked llo:Aed JoBueg 143 #1101
62°1EL'6L- S0'8ZE- uaineT] ‘usrei zele  zliol
$2'€08'8l- 88°/Z¢- sasuadxg 40}0a41q BAINd8X] Aiewasoy ‘mojny LELE  ZL/OL
9€'GL¥'8l-  00°042- younT Bunssy o9 Bu aye) syep Anunon oeLe  2ZLiolL
9£'60Z'8l~ G¥'0S- Bunuudia 62.€ ZLi0L
16'¥SL'8L- ShvbL'9L- uonuaAuod vYOON 9102 JoBueg uuj uapies uojiy 8zl 2lL/0L
oy’ 0Ly'L-  GL'9b9- sasuadxg Jojoang amnoexg fiewasoy ‘mony| 1218 ZL0L
LEv9L- 06°L91- 3|qeD JaurBp) awi ), 143 zi/ol
L9665~ 00's2lL- siaindwo) jopde) 9z.e ZL/oL
Ly LLb- 86°669- Sy3dauep szl  ZLOL
LLvee 00'9/0°2 usodeq LL/OL
£8°168'L-  €87168'}- 91/2/01 ©} 92/6 doam 1o} |joiked llo:hed Jobuegq 143 401
aosuejeg junoury owa aweN wnN ajeq
9102 490300

Junoo22y Aq |ie}aq uonoesues |

UOIJBIDOSSY SI9UOISSIWIWOY) AJUno? auiep

ajqefed s)unoday

JUNo2oY Jaxsepy AauoW 1ejo)

JUno22Yy Jaxiepy Asuopy

yueg sbuineg-bupoayd voon (g0l

yueg sbuiaeg-bupyoayd vooW

s|seq [en1aoy

9LIg0/LL
Wd 6s:2t



9 jo g abed

000 000
000 19°06¢- suopnguiuoy sduelnsuj yjjesH 33 lloihed jobueg +4-9L0C  82/0L
19°06¢ G9'Z9L'L suonnquiuod aduelnsu| yjleeH 33 lloiked jobueg  ¥¥-9L02  8Z/0L
¥0'CL8- 89°06¢- suonnquuod asuelnsu| yyesH 33 lloiked 1obueg  ¢4-910Z  LZ/0L
9€’18S- 89°06¢- suonngquUIuoD aduelnsu] yyesy 33 lloiked soBueg  zy-9L02 ¥L/OL
89°062- 89°06¢- suohinqlauo) asueinsu| yiesH 33 llo:Aed tobueg Ly-9102 /0L
000 000
000 [A:WA4 A 91/€Z/0L O} LL/0| deam 1o} ||0ihed lo1Aed Jobueg 143 8z2/0t
LYY'S-  28LYY'S- 9L/£Z/01 O} L1/0L Y3am Joj |joihed lloihed jobueg  $¥-9L02  8Z/0L
000 €8'168'L 91/91/0L O} OL/0} oM 1o} {joiked jloihed tobueg 143 1z/ol
€8°168'L- £8°168°L- 91L/9L/0L O} OL/OL YoM 10} ||0Iked lloihed Jobueg £4-910Z L2/t
000 LV L6V juay 820 nesing wiej sulep 9€.¢ 0c/0L
LL'L6Y' - 18°S8E'L jueg |euoieN uspwe) gele  0Z/0L
$0'€88'2-  18°S8E'L- jueg |euoheN uspwe) oz/oL
LV'l6v'L- 008y Auedwo) soueInsu| s|led 181D veLE  02Z/0L
LL'SYS'L-  00'8h- Auedwo) soueinsu| s|jed 1eal9 02/01
LL'L6%'L- 0062 jueg SN g€eLe  0Z/0L
V2LV 00SLe- jueg sn 0c/0L
LL'l6¥'L-  £8'1S8')L 91/6/01 O} £/01 oM 1oy |joiked to1ked JoBueg 143 ¥L/0L
00'6be'e-  €8158'L- 91/6/01 01 £/01 %33m 10} |j0Aed lloshed Jobueg  zZv-9L0Z  vL/OL
LVL6Y'L- LLL6Y'L- juay adylo neaing wie4 sulgpy €L/0L
000 g0'8ce uaine ‘uaneH ¢eLE  cLio)
S0'82¢- c0'8sce- uaine ‘ueneH ZLiol
000 89'/2¢ sosuadxJ Jojoan( aARNoaxXg Alewasoy ‘mojny LELE  ZL/0L
88'/2¢6- 88 /2¢- sasuadx3 JojoslI 2AINDSXT Klewssoy ‘mojny ZL/0L
000 00042 younT Bunssy QOg Buusie) ajeg Anuno) oclg  2iL/oL
00°0Le- 00'0Le- youn Bunsay aog Bunsie) ajen Anuno)d ciL/iol
000 Sv°0S Bunuudiz 62.e ZL/0L
Sv'0S- St°0S- Bunuudiz ZiLolL
000 Styvl'ol uonuaauod YOOW 9102 JoBueg uu| uspieg uojiH gc.e  Zi/ol
ShyvL'9L- Shyvl'ol- uoguaauod YOOW 9102 JoBueg uu| uspie uoyiH cL/oL
000 Sl'9p9 sesuadxg Jojoalq aAIN3axg Aewasoy ‘mojny| 121 Zuol
SL'9v9- S1'9%9- sesuadx3 J0j0a.1q AN0SXT Kiewasoy ‘mojny ZL/01
asuejeg junowny oway aweN wny aeq
9102 180320

JUNO29Y Aq [Ie}ag Uonoesuel |

uonEI0SSY SIdUOISSIWWO) AJunoH aulep

1juo) ssueInsu| yyesH aakodw3 - 00-0001 1BI0L

1uog esueinsu)] yjjesH sakojdwig - 00-0001

a|geled sjunodoy [B10|

s|seg |enJooy

9LI/E0/LL
Wd 65:T1



g jo ¢ abed

Py ey 8Lyl saxe ] lloihed Jobueg  ¢4-9102  1LzZ/0L
96282 8y Lyl soxe]. lloihed Jobueg  zy-9L0Z  ¥L/0L
8y Lyl sy Lyl saxe] lloihed tobueg |y-910Z /0L
VIId - 00-0£0S
00°9¢!L 00°9€L saa4 |joiAed - 00-020S |e10L
00'9¢L 00°0b @9 Buissadold lloifed Jobueg  $¥-9L0Z 82Z/0L
0096 00°2¢ 29} buissaoold lloJAed Jobueg  €+-9L0Z  12/0L
00'v9 00'ze 99y Buissadold lloihed sobueg  zy-910Z  vL/OL
00°ze 00°ze 99 Buissadoid lloifed obueg |4-910z  2/0)
s994 |joshed - 00-020S
sasuadxg |[oshed - 00-000S
6l'g- 5.'8- paule3 jsala| - 00-0L8Y [BI0L
6l8- 8.6 1sausyu| Le/oL
162 162 1sauey| 101
pau.ie3 ysaiau) - 00-0L8Y
00'920'2-  00°9.0'2- BLI0DU| UOHUBAUOD - 00-00 LY IEJOL
00'9.0'2- 00°920'- uonesnsibay - 00-0ZLY 1BIOL
00'9.0'2- 00291~ Ujwg uamo Auno) oplepy 97822 LL/OL
00'vL6'L-  00'8€8'L- s|ealu/pusny J0osgouad Aunojjoosqousd  £29/9  LL/0L
00'92- 00 9¢Z- SUaAB)S D Aunog ujooul L2vlZ  LLIOL
uonesnsibay - 00-0ZLy
aWwodUu] UolU3AUOCY) - 00-00LY
000 00°0 uonnguiuod eakojdw SYI4aUEN - 00-L00L BI0L
000 #8789 suognguuo) Juswsaley SY3I4AW 33 lioihed sobueg  +1-910z  82/0L
¥8°89- L2LLL- uonnquyuoy sakojdwy lloihed jobueg  vb-9L0z  8Z/0L
£9°€LS- Lz LLL- uonnquuo) sakojdwy lloifed Jobueg ¢€4-9102  LZ/OL
Zreve- RV uonnqiuo) sakoidwy lloifed jobueg zy-910z  ¥1/01
Lz’ LLL- L2 LLL- uonnqiuo) sakojdwy oike sobueg Lp-9L0z  Z/0L
uonnquiuog aakojdwz sy3dauteny - 00-100
asuejeg junouwry Owa aweN wnN ajeq
9102 1290390

s|seg |en4ooy

JUno29Yy Aq [IB}9Q uonoeSsueRl | oy
UOJBID0SSY SIBUOISSIWWOY) AJUNO0Y) suley Wd 65:21



9 jo ¢ abed

asuadxg UOPUSAUOY - 00-0119

1£88.°'L 1£88L°L aoueInsu| - 00-001S (810
00'8t 00’8y duwio) s1a)Iop - 00-0ELS [B101
008t 00°'8Y dwon sianiop Auedwoy soueInsu| s|je4 Jeal) 0z/0L
dwo) si1a)40M - 00-0ELS
LEe°0vL'L LEOPL'L souelnsu| yyesH - 00-0L LS [Bl10L
LEOVLL Le0vL') suonnguuoy sdueInsu| UilesH ¥3 [foifed joBueg ¢¥-9L0Z  8Z/0L
aoueinsu| yyesH - 00-0LLS
asueInsy| - 00-00LS
25'856'6 25'856'6 sasuadx3] jjoihed - 00-0006S [BIOL
y2'6v9'S  ¥T6¥9'S J0)0a11q aAynoax3-Aleles - 00-0906 (10l
¥T6V9'S LETILY'L Kiejeg siojoanQg aAnoex3 llolhed toBueg  #$-9L0Z 82/0L
£6'9EC'Y LETLP'L Asejeg siojoang aAnoax3 lloihed jobueg ¢£$-910Z  12Z/01
29'v28'e LlECIY'L Aie[eg s10j08J1Q 8ANNOSX3 lloJAed Jobueg zp-gL0Z  +L/0L
LECLyL leeiy'l Aie[eg s10j08.1(J 8ANNOEX] Iloihed jobueg Ly-9L02  L/0L
Joyoauiq sannoax3-Aiefes - 00-0905
2l'Le'c  el'lle'e Jabeueyy 9o0-Aleles - 00-0S06 [E10)
TLLILe'e  £6'L2L Arejeg siebeuepy 300 lloiAed jobueg  ¥1-910Z  8Z/0L
6.°€81'C €6°LCL Aiejeg juejsissy aanensiuiwpy lloiAed jobueg ¢4-9L0Z  12/01L
98°'6St'L €6°L2L Asejes juejsissy aaneisiuIWPY lloifed oBueg zy-9L0Z2  ¥LAOL
£6°L2L €6'L¢L Kiejeg yueysissy aAjess|uLIpY lloJheq Jobueg  Ly-9L0Z /0L
Jabeuely so1O-Aieles - 00-0505
8G°G69 86669 suonnqlIuod SY3deuteiN - 00-0¥0S [EYoL
857669 86°669 uonnguUIuoY BWaIeY YIAodw3 Sy3adsulen LL/oL
suonnquiuod SY3dsulely - 00-00S
86°G9S 86°G9S vOId - 00-0€0S |eloL
86°695 yS LYl saxel lloJAed jobueg $¥-910Z  82/0L
aouejeg junowy owap aweN wny ajeqg
910z 1890320
JUNoJAdY >D jlejag uolnoesueld | siseg [En22Y

9LIE0/LL
uoleId0SSY SJauoissiuwo) fjuno) aulepy Wd 6521



9 jo G abeg

0L'86 0186 Bunes|y ‘WwoD-[3)0H juegq |euoeN uapwen oz/oL
18Y)0 - sbunasyy - 00-62L9
90°'80€ 90°'80€ Alyiuow - 00-€219 [eJ0L
90°80€ 90°'8¢ Bunssy 8UI0 usine ‘ueney zLoL
00042 00042 younT Bunseiy @og Buusien ayen Anuno) zLiolL
Ajqauowy - 00-€219
asuadx3 Bunespy - 00-0L19
00°00% 00°'00% aoyo - uswdinb3 . 00-0G19 1BI0L
0062 00642 asea Jaidooojoyd - 00-€S19 lejoL
00642 00'6/2 jueg sn 0z/01
aseaT uaidosojoyd - 00-€519
00521 00621 $80IA8S || - 00-2519 =101
00621 00621 sieyndwo) jopden zLoL
S9o1M88 1| - 00-2519
a3yjo - Juswdinb3 - 00-0519
lT666'LL 12°666'LL asuadx3 uolusAuo) - 00-01L 19 [B10),
GZ'9€T GZ'9ET sa|ddng - 00-1219 [B101
5Z'9cT 6Z'9eT sa||ddng uonuaAuo) juegq |euoneN uspwe) 0z/olL
salddng - 00-1Z19
0Z°08L'9L 0Z'081'91L dx3 6unssiy - 00-8L 19 IE10L
02'08.'9L  16SL asuadxg uoyusAu0) jueg [euonen uspie) oz/oL
62992'9L  v8'6l uaine ‘ueney zLoL
St'PPL'OL  ShvvL'ol 8NUBA UOJUBAUDD JoBueg uuj uapieg uojiH zLoL
“dx3 Bunesyy - 00-81L19
78'286 78286 asuadx3 uonessibay yeis vOOI - 00-1 19 1elol
28'286 78286 uonesnsibay yers voon jueq jeuoneN uapwe) 0z/0L
asuadx3g uonesnsibay yeis 3o - 00-vL19
asuejeg junowry owap aweN wnnN ajeq
9102 1990320
JUNnoJJy >n [lejag uolnoesues | siseg |enioay

9L/c0/LL
UONBIDOSSY SIBUOISSIWWOY) AJUNoY sulep Wd 6521



9 Jo 9 abed

00°0 000 aviol
€1°.9¢ €1°L9¢ lowselu| % xe4 ‘suoydaja] - 00-0¥29 IBI0L
06'/91 06°291 Jousslu| '8 xe4 ‘suoyd - 00-€¥Z9 Iel0L
06°L91 06'291 jaulsiu| g xe4 auoyd 9|qe Jsuiep swi cLioL

Jousau] @ X4 ‘auoyd - 00-€¥Z9

€2'661 €266 auoud le9 - 00-L¥29 [B101
€2'661 €T'6Y Juswasinquiiay auoyd 190 uainen ‘uaneH zLoL
00°0S1L 00'S. JuswasINquiay auoyd |90 Arewasoy ‘mojny zLol
00'SL 00°SL JuswasInquiiay auoyd (80 Aiewasoy ‘mojny zZL/oL

auoyd |99 - 00-LZ9
19us83u %8 Xe4 ‘euoyds|al - 00-0¥Z9

cl'iel cl'Lct sal|ddng - 00-5€29 [e10L
cl’'iecl 6.°cS salddng aayo jueg |eucieN uapwey 0z/oL
££°89 88'L1 salddng 820 usineT ‘uaneH cL/ol
Sv'0S S¥'0S sadofAuz/syI8y0 Bunundia cLiolb

salddng - 00-5£29

L116¥°L LU 6L [eusy aoeds 20O - 00-S619 [EI0L
LV 16V LV L6Y'L jusy neaing uJed suepy €101

|ejuay asedg 82130 - 00-5619

L0°220'  L0°220°L asuadx3 jerel] g abesyN - 00-0819 [B10L
10°220'L  $O'€0T uaine ‘uaney zZLoL
€028 88'Z52 abea|)yy J010a.1Q @ARNDSXT Aiewasoy ‘mojny zLoL
SL'LLS SL'LLS abeayy J0j0a.1Q SAINOSX3 Arewasoy ‘mojny ZIoL

asuadx3 |aAel] @ obeo|iN - 00-081L9

91°90% 91'90v asuadx3 Bunesy - 00-0L19 [EIOL
0L'86 01’86 JayiQ - sbuneal - 00-GL19 [el0L
.
asuejeg junowy oway sweN wnN sleq
910¢ 1990300
JUNOIDY >Q |iejog uonoesued | m_mnmo_r.wm“”ﬂ

uoneIdossy siauolissiuwo) fQunon aure Wd 65:2ZL



€ Jo | abeqd

18'G8E'L  /8'G8E’L
18'G8€'L  ¢8¢86  suadx3 uoneysibey yeis vOOW - 00-119 uonexnsibay yeis vOOW 0zZ/0L
S0'€0V L6°GlL “dx3 Bunes - 00-8119 asuadx3 uonuaAuoy 0Z/0L
¥1°18¢ 6.2 sayiddng - 00-6£Z9 salddng 800 02/01
Gevee ST 1A sa||ddns - 00-1Z19 se||ddng uonusAuod 0z/01
01'86 01°86 JayO - sbuss - 00-G19 Bunesyy ‘wwod-B10H 0zZ/01L
LE'€E00'LL  LE'E00LL
LE'E00'LL  LEOPL'L 9ouBINSU| YjesH - 00-0L LG suonnqujuo sduBINSU| YlesH ¥3 8Z/01
¥6'29¢'6  1ETLY'L Jojoauig aaynoex3-Aiees - 00-0905 Aejeg si00811q 8Ayndex3 8z/01
£€9°0S8'. 000V saa4 |loJhed - 00-020S 89 Buissaoold 8z/01
€9°018'L VS IYL VOl - 00-0£0S sexel 8z/0L
60699'L €622L Jobeuep sao-Aieles - 00-0505 Aejeg siabeuep 200 82/01
gL'Lye's 1ETIYL Jojoaung aagnoex3-Aeles - 00-090S Aejeg si0}08.1q @ANDEX] |Z/01
68'825'S  00°Z¢ s994 |[0iAed - 00-020S 99} Buissadoid 1z/01
G8'96¥'S 8Lyl vOId - 00-0£0S soxe| |z/0}
1€6GE'S  €6°L2L labBeuepy aoyo-Aieles - 00-050S Aejeg yuelsissy aanensiuiwpy L Z/01L
vvl29'v  LETIYL JojoaunQ aannoax3-Aiejes - 00-090S Asejeg siopaiq 8andex3 L/0L
eL'siz'’e  00ce se94 |joJAed - 00-020S a9j Buissadoid v1/01
gresl'e syl VOl - 00-0£0S sexel v1/0l
SO'LY0'E  €64ZL Jabeuepy soyo-Lieles - 00-050S Aejeg juesissy aanensiuiwpy v1/0L
TLEIE'T LTl Jojoaug aagndex3-Aiejes - 00-090S Aejeg siopang aapnosx3 /0L
Ly L06 00°Z¢ s994 ||0iked - 00-0Z0S 99} buissasold  //01
L¥'698 8y Lyl VvOId - 00-0£0S soxel /0L
£6°L2L €6°L2L Jabeuep soy)0-Aieles - 00-050S Aejeg juelsissy aanensiuiwpy  2/0)
aouejeg junowy JUNO22Y owd ajeq
9102 1240320

lleyaq Jopua Aq sasuadxy
uoljeI20SSY SIauoISSIWWOoY AJUnoy aulepy

yueg jeuoleN uspwen [Bjo|

yjueq [euoneN uapuies

lloJAed Jobueg |ejo |

ll01heq jo6ueg

siseg |[enJdoy

91/€0/11
Wvoz:LL



€ Jo g abed

SPyvl'ol Syvvlol

SP'ypL'OL  SPPpL'ol dx3 Bunsay - 00-8119 BNUSA UONUBAUCD Z1/01

50'82¢ 50'82¢

S0'82¢ $2'61 *dx3 Bunsaly - 00-8119 ZHol

1Z'80¢€ +0°€02 asuadx3 [onel] g abesfiy  00-0819 ZLol

21°60L WA salddng - 00-6£29 sayddng 20O Z1/01

62'.8 90'8¢ Ajuon - 00-€219 Bunesiy Jaul0 Z1L/0L

€T 6P €26V auoyd (@D - 00-1+29 JuswssINquIisy auoyd (D Z1/0l

00 8¥ 00 8¥

00°8¥ 00'8¥ dwo) s1eNIoM - 00-0ELS dwo) s1axop 02/01

S°'05 SP'0S

G 0S Sp'0S soiddns - 00-6£29 sadojsAaug/sioayd ¢Z1/01

0002 00022

0002 00022 Alyuol - 00-€219 youn Bunesiy @oq ZL/01

00°62E 00°SZL

00 s2l 00521 soomeg 1| - 00-2519 rAV]
ajuejeg junowy jUNo22Y owiapy ajeq

9102 1240300

lejaq Jopusp Aq sasuadx3y
uUoIeID0SSY SJauolssiwwo) Ajuno) auley

Jo0bueg uu| uspies) Uo}jiH jelol

JoBueg uuj uap.ies) uoljiH

uaine ‘usAeH |ejo|

uaineT ‘uaAey

Auedwo) asueinsu| s|jed jealo |ejo]
Auedwon asueinsuj sjjed jeas
Bunuugi3 feloL

Bugundia

Buualen ayen Ajuno) jejol

Buuejen ajen Anunomn

sJe)nduwio) jonded jejo

si1sindwo) joyden

siseq |enJoay

oL/ed/L1
WY 9Z:LL



¢ Jo ¢ abed

18'b9S‘CE  18'¥9G'ES

00°G.¢ 00°'GL¢

00°6.¢ 00°6.¢C ases Ja1dooojoyd - 00-ES1L9 0¢/01

06°291 06°L91

06°.91 06°291 joussiu| @ xed ‘auoud - 00-£¥29 jaulsju] @ xed auoyd ¢L/0L

8G6°G69 89°569

8G°G69 89°G69 suoynguuod sy3dauteiN - 00-0¥0G uofjnquiuog juswainey y3kodws L1/0L

LV 6L LV I6Y')

LVI6Y'L LV iYL [eyusy aoeds 82O - 00-G619 usy ¢€1/01

€0'v.6 e0'v.L6

e0v.6 00°GL auoyd 1180 - 00-L¥29 juswiasinquiiay suoud ji8D Z1L/0L

£0°668 88°¢S¢C asuadx3 |aael] @ abeapp - 00-0819 abeayily J0j0a11Q 2AINDSXT ZL/0L

Si'9v9 00°GL auoyd 19D - 00-1¥29 Jjuswasinquiiay suoyd |80 Z1/01

SLLLS GL LS asuadx3 [anel] g sbes| - 00-0819 abeayiy J0j0a11q @ANEXT 21/01L
eouejeg  junowy JUNo29Yy owapy ajeq

910¢ 12q0300

|lejag Jopua Aq sasuadx3y
uoljeId0ssy siauolssiwwo?) AJuno) aulep

viol

jued SN [ejol

Nueg sn

8|qeD Jausepp swi] (0]

a|qe) Jaultep swi]

SHIdBueN [BejoL

Sy3adauley

neaing wie4 auie [e1ol

neaing wJie4 sauiep

Aewssoy mojny| |ejo

Aiewasoy ‘mony

siseg {en1doy

gL/eo/Ll
WV 92:11






2016 Convention of Maine Counties

Evaluation Form Results
Hilton Garden Inn Bangor September 30, October 1, & 2

Following are the average scores compiled from the 37 evaluation forms submitted indicating attendees
overall satisfaction. The scores are between 1 and 5, 1 being the lowest and 5 being the highest rating.

4 “Retirement Health Insurance Options,” by David Thompson from NACo’s Financial Services Center
and Tom Carey from Optum

4 | “Integrating GIS and Mapping into County Government,” by Louis Morin from UMaine

Comments: Very small audience. I appreciate Mr. Morin reaching out to Counties for their feedback and
participation.

4 “Understanding Maine County Jail Inspections,” by Ryan Anderson from the Department of
Corrections.
4 “What’s new with the ACA - and How the Presidential Election Might Change Things,” by Maine

Municipal Employee Heath Trust Director Anne Wright

“Closing the Huger Gap with Local Food,” by Jim Hanna from the Cumberland County Food Security
Council

5 | “EMA 101-What Every Commissioner Should Know,” by Darren Woods, Aroostook County EMA

4 | “Contract Negotiations,” by Linda McGill from Bernstein Shur

“Reversing an Overdose - Law Enforcement & Corrections Use of Narcan,” by Kennebec County

4 | sheriff Ryan Reardon

4 | “Social Media from the County Perspective,” by John Hamer from Rudman Winchell

Comments: | thought John did a very good job. Good participation from the attendees too.

“Delivering Services Differently,” by Cumberland County Manager Peter Crichton and Yarmouth
Town Manager Nat Tupper

g | “FirstNet Update,” by Elissa Tracey and David Maxwell from FirstNetME

“Stepping Up: A National Initiative to Reduce the Number of People with Mental Ilinesses in Jails,” by
Penobscot County Sheriff Troy Morton and NAMI Executive Director Jenna Mehnert

“STRESS: Just Deal With It"- by Peter Marchesi from Wheeler & Arey and MCCA Risk Pool Manager

5 Malcolm Ulmer

Comments: Very different seminar for Peter to present. Peter is always a hit. Excellent preparation



Activities:

5 Golf

Bowling
Comments: Few people participated but overall all who bowled enjoyed themselves.

g | Target Shooting

In General:

5 | Venue - Hilton Garden Inn

Comments: Very impressive, Hilton Garden was top notch. Obviously | am from Penobscot County and
believe it was a 4 + but as any Convention there is always some room to improve. Pleased - very clean -
good location - good meeting rooms. Great. Very Good. Good. Very impressive. Excellent. Wish they
offered free breakfast. Very nice rooms, clean and comfortable. Sometimes too cold. Very comfortable,
clean. Very nice, helpful, friendly staff

4 | Meal Choices

Comments: Fine, all great! Good choices available. Great. Meals were great, hotel restaurant was very
good. Very good. Good choices. Fine. Excellent.

4 | Meal Quality

Comments: Very good. Good choices. Haddock dinner Friday night delish! Excellent. Good. All good.
Very good. Okay. Good meals. Much improved from 2011.

4 | Educational Session Topics

Comments: Good, Yes, I believe the topics were germane and applicable. Need a broader selection.
Many of the classes did not have value for Deeds, Probate or Treasurers. Fine - Interesting. Great, but
not enough of them. Very Good. Very Good. Good. Good. Variety of choices.

4 | Educational Session Quality

Comments: Good, The 2 classes I attended were of quality. Wonderful topics and presenters. Good.
Good. Very good. Excellent. Good. Good.

4 | Activities Offered

Comments: Good, Again, I am biased but I believe there were three solid offerings as well as the
opportunity for some to go Hollywood Casino with free slot play. Many could not participate. There are
a range of ages. Bus tours would have been great. Not varied enough - would have liked a bus tour
somewhere. Good. Somewhat limited. No activities for handicap or older people.

4 | Entertainment

Comments: Best in years. I think John Ford, Mark Nickerson and the Retrorockerz were all
entertaining. Excellent. Good. Good. Very good.

Suggestions for next year: Have in Penobscot again! :-) Not being the Host... just kidding. I will be interested
to learn what others have to say here. Keep up the good work. Showed great preparation. Well done. You decide.
Make sure all associations are represented in educational classes. Consider the ages of people attending. Great Job!!
More NACo Speakers, more info on NACo services and more info on NACo programs. Note: we might have included
rating the Speakers too in the future. Thanks to all Good meeting - well organized.



2016 Convention of Maine Counties

Vendor Evaluation Form Results
Hilton Garden Inn Bangor September 30, October 1, & 2

Following are the average scores and comments compiled from the eight evaluation forms submitted by vendors
indicating their overall satisfaction. The scores are between 1 and 5, 1 being the lowest and 5 being the highest rating.

4

Venue - Hilton Garden Inn

Comments: Hilton Garden is very clean and the staff has been very helpful. Third room was in an obscure location. Need
bigger place.

Venue Location

Comments: Great location. Great.

Meal Choices

Comments: Very good.

Meal Quality

Comments:

Exhibit Placement (order)

Comments: Great! Hotel staff were very helpful. Hard to be a bit part of the dining room.

Overall Friday was a good day with a little traffic through the exhibit area and some good conversations. Late in the day [
noticed the flow went very low. | had other commitments and could not attend the dinner Friday evening. My loss.
Exhibit Location in the Venue

Comments: Not much traffic - would be better if coffee & refreshments were in the same room. Wonderful! Everyone
spotted the duck very easily.

Adequate Space in and around Exhibit Tables

Comments: Would like space behind table - table was against the wall. Very adequate! Too many large tables in the middle.

Adequate Time with Attendees

Comments: Not many folks accept the first meal. Enjoyed my time with all the attendees.

On Saturday it became evident that because the refreshments were in the hall outside the session rooms very few people
ventured into the exhibit area, as you witnessed when you were in the area. This was very disappointing. I golfed in the
afternoon and the majority of people golfing had not been in the exhibit area. I was meeting them for the first time. I know
putting on a convention is a daunting task with many priorities. I would hope one of those priorities is making sure the flow
of people includes the exhibit area. The area being separated from the main events never works out for the vendors. If the
refreshments were supposed to be in the vendor area someone from the convention organizing group should have insisted
it was set up according to plan. The venue will bend over backwards to accommodate the organizers.

Customer Service - Was MCCA staff knowledgeable and helpful?

Comments: Excellent - could not ask for better service. Lauren is awesome!

Registration Process — Was it easy to find a registration form? Were the instructions clear?

Comments: Very clear. Lauren, you are so helpful with registration and related info.

Suggestions for next year: Overall was satisfactory. Lauren, really no suggestions at this time. I am very happy to be a part of
the Maine County Commissioners Convention. Hope to be back, more opportunities to mingle with staff, etc. I enjoyed being part
of this convention and would like to do it again. The set up will determine my participation in the future.






